THE MICHIGAN TEST ROAD

PREFACE

IMIS bulletin presents a summary of the essential features of design and construction pertinent to the Michigan Test Road. It has been prepared as a reference study for the convenience of those interested in the project. Included in this summary are all of the important factual data relevant to the project; such as location, description, purpose and scope of study, descriptive outline of the test sections and detail layout of the design and durability studies.

The bulletin consists of four parts: the first, presents an introduction to the problem which describes the purpose and scope of the project, preliminary studies and a brief review of subsequent studies. The second and third outline and define, with the aid of illustrations, the scope of the design and durability projects respectively. Included in these parts are described features of design, incidental methods of construction and methods of measurements. The fourth and last part outlines the various subsequent studies which will be conducted throughout the next few years.

The appendices include: (1) the Public Roads Administration outline of "Proposed Experimental Concrete Pavement Construction", (2) the physical characteristics of materials involved in the construction of the Michigan Test Road, (3) sources of materials and equipment, (4) miscellaneous information and (5) a bibliography of literature pertaining to the important studies included in the design and durability projects.

For the convenience of those wishing to visually inspect the experimental project, concrete markers bearing appropriate identification numbers have been installed at the beginning and end of each test area. The key to the identification numbers on the concrete markers will be found in the "Summaries of the Design and Durability Projects," tables 1 and 2 respectively.

The design project of the Michigan Test Road coincides in a general way with the Public Roads Administrations' plans and procedure for construction of experimental roads which were submitted to various state highway organizations in 1940*. The purpose of the Public Roads Administration experimental work, as outlined, was to study the desired spacing of transverse expansion joints in concrete pavements and the amount of expansion space required per unit pavement length, and to study the efficiency of dummy contraction joints with and without dowels or other devices for the transfer of load.

It will be noted, upon further analysis, that the Michigan Test Road is more comprehensive in its scope than the outline of the Public Roads Administration.

The Michigan Test Road was constructed under regular contract and construction procedure using the Michigan State Highway Departments' 1940 plans and specifications with necessary supplementals.

*See Appendix I.

TABLE of CONTENTS

PART I	Page
Introduction	7
Preliminary Studies	7
Scope of the Project	8
Subsequent Studies	8
PART II	
The Design Project	9
Joint Spacing and Design	14
Pavement Cross Section	21
Steel Reinforcement	21
Methods of Measurement	22
Incidental Studies	29
PART III	
The Durability Project	36
Proportioning and Grading of Aggregates	37
Evaluation of Additives in Concrete Mixtures	37
Limestone Äggregates	40
Finishing Studies	41
Concrete Curing Study	42
Incidental Studies	44
PART IV	
Subsequent Studies	47
CONCLUSION.	49
APPENDICES	50
Appendix I	
Public Roads Administration Outline of Proposed Experimental Concrete Pavement Con- struction	51
Appendix II	
Characteristics of Materials used in Michigan Test Road	55
Appendix III	
Miscellaneous Information	66
Appendix IV	
Bibliography	67

LIST of FIGURES

T: 1	Logation of Michigan Tost Road	6
1 ig. i.	Decauor of Michigan Test Road and a set a	Š
Fig. 2	Detail Location of Michigan Test Road	6
F :2 3	Schematic Diagram of Design Project	10
1 ig. 0.		11
Table I.	Summary of Test Areas on Design Project	11
Fig. 4.	Detail Sketch of Expansion Relief Section—Type RS 1	12
T: 6	Detail Shotch of European Poliof Socian-Type PS 2	12
rig. 5.	Detail Sketch of Expansion Relief Section-Type RS 2,	14
Fia. 6.	Detail Sketch of Expansion Relief Section—Type RS 3	- 13
T: ~ 7	Detail Sketch of Expansion Relief Section-Type RS 4	13
1 ig. 1.		14
Fig. 8.	Detail Sketch of Expansion Relief Section-Type RS 5	14
Fig. 9.	Detail Sketch of Truss-Assembly for Holding Dowel Bars at Expansion and Contraction	
1 ig. 0.		10
	conts Typical Expansion cont Assemblies	15
Fig. 10A.	Standard Expansion Joint Assembly with 3/4 inch Dowel Bars for Load Transfer and	
-	Lingh Filter	16
-	Then Tiber Timer,	10
Fig. IUB.	Expansion Joint Assembly with 1/4 inch x 18 inches Corner Bars	15
Fig. 11.	Detail Sketch of 11/4 inch x 18 inch Dowel Corner Bar Assembly	16
E: 10	Translad, Engrish Triat Secondly Head on Strong Curring Section	ĩč
r 1g. 14.	Translode Expansion sound Assembly Used on Diress Ourning Section	10
Fia. 13.	Detail Sketch of Contraction and Plane of Weakness Joints Used on Project	17
Fig 14	Type I Contraction Joint Assembly	17
Tig. 11.		**
Fig. 15.	Detail Sketch of Types 2A and 2B Contraction Joint with Load Transfer Device and Part-	
	ing Strip	18
T:- 16	Contraction Joint Accomply with Dowel Bars and Steel Dividing Plate	10
r 1g. 10.	Contraction count Assembly with Dower Dats and Dieer Dividing Flate	10
Fig. 17.	Detail Sketch of Type 3 Contraction Joint with Load Transfer Device and Steel Dividing	
-	Plate	19
T 1 10	D (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)	10
r 1g. 18.	Detail Sketch of Type 4, Contraction Joint with Continuous Plate Dowel Load Transfer	
		20
T:- 10A	Continuous Plate Downl Contraction Joint Assembly	20
1 IQ. 10H.	Continuous I fate Dower Contraction Contraction Provide August 1	40
Fig. 19B.	Keylode Contraction Joint Assembly	21
Fig. 20.	Detail Sketch of Keylode Contraction Joint Assembly, Type 5.	21
Tr. 01	Detail Cl. () f D. (00
r 1g. 41.	Detail Sketch of Pavement Cross-Sections	44
Fig. 22.	Detail Sketch Showing Relative Location of Reference Points	23
Fig 23	Starrett Micrometer Caliper used to measure Joint Widths	23
TP: 04	T_{1}	20
r 1g. 24	Elevation Points to determine Vertical Displacement of Pavement at the Joint,	23
Fig. 25A.	View of Telescopic Measuring Device	24
Fig 25B	View of Reference Monument	24
1 ig. 20D.		07
1 1g. 20.	Detail Sketch of Reference Monument	25
Fig. 27A.	Moisture Cell Assembly	26
T: 27B	Thompson la Report la	27
1.9. 010.		41
r ig. 28	Detail Sketch of Moisture Cell and Thermocouple Assemblies for Special Studies	26
Fig. 29.	Detail Sketch of Moisture Cell and Thermocouple Assemblies for Regular Installations.	27
F: 30	Fauinment for Measuring Strong in Povement Slab	20
r 19. 00.	adupinent for Measuring Stress in Pavement Stabitistic stabitistics	20
Fig. 31.	Method of Measuring Surface Strain	-28
Fig. 32.	Detail Sketch of Strain Gage and Moisture Cell Assembly	29
T: 22	Mathed of Bo maning Colour Ja Madaluz	20
1 1g. 00.	Method of Measuring Subgrade Modulus	40
Fig. 34-1.	Evaporation Pan with Measuring Device	- 29
Fig. 34.	Meteorological Equipment	30
T: 26 K	Browner O. Bin Director Linet Opening	21
rig. Son.	Fressure Cen in Flace in Contropening	51
Fig. 35B.	Adjusting Air Cells to Test Specimen	- 32
Fig. 36A.	Detail Sketch of Stress Curing Test Section	31
T: 200	Detail Chetch of Starte Carrier Test Section	20
rig. 30D.	Detail Sketch of Stress Curing Test Section	34
Fig. 37A.	View of Mechanical Concrete Spreader	- 33
Fig. 37B.	View of Mechanical Concrete Spreader	- 33
F: 00	$C_{-1} = 1$	20
r 1g. 30.	Sealing Joint with Asphaitic Oil-Latex Material	- 33
Fig. 39.	Detail Sketch of Asphalt Latex Expansion Joint	- 34
Fig 40	Premolded Rubber Francian Joint Filler in Place	35
119. 10.		
r 1g. 41.	Detail Sketch of Premolded Rubber Joint Installation	34
Fia. 42.	Sealing Joint with Rai-Seal	35
F: 43	Mechanical Form Tampon	35
149. 10.		00
r 1g. 44.	Vibrating Concrete at Forms and Joints	35
Fig. 45.	Schematic Diagram of Durability Section	- 38
Table 2	Summary of Tast Areas on Dunability Project	30
	Manufacty of rest frieds on Durability respect to the transmission of transmission of the transmission of transmis	41
t ig. 46.	Views of Brooming Operations	41
Fig. 47	Curing Methods	43
Fig 19	Bungaraf Test Equipment for Massuring Time of Set of Congrets	<u>д</u> к
Fig. 48.	Burggraf Test Equipment for Measuring Time of Set of Concrete	45
Fig. 48. Fig. 49A.	Burggraf Test Equipment for Measuring Time of Set of Concrete Molding Modulus of Rupture Specimens	45 45
Fig. 48. Fig. 49A. Fig. 49B	Burggraf Test Equipment for Measuring Time of Set of Concrete Molding Modulus of Rupture Specimens Molds for Casting, Freezing and Thawing Specimens and Compression Cylinders	45 45 45
Fig. 48. Fig. 49A. Fig. 49B.	Burggraf Test Equipment for Measuring Time of Set of Concrete Molding Modulus of Rupture Specimens Molds for Casting, Freezing and Thawing Specimens and Compression Cylinders Sonia Amountur for Detorming Modulus of Electricity of Concrete Fort Sections	45 45 45 46
Fig. 48. Fig. 49A. Fig. 49B. Fig. 50.	Burggraf Test Equipment for Measuring Time of Set of Concrete Molding Modulus of Rupture Specimens Molds for Casting, Freezing and Thawing Specimens and Compression Cylinders Sonic Apparatus for Determining Modulus of Elasticity of Concrete Test Specimens	45 45 45 46
Fig. 48. Fig. 49A. Fig. 49B. Fig. 50. Fig. 51.	Burggraf Test Equipment for Measuring Time of Set of Concrete Molding Modulus of Rupture Specimens Molds for Casting, Freezing and Thawing Specimens and Compression Cylinders Sonic Apparatus for Determining Modulus of Elasticity of Concrete Test Specimens Dyked Areas for Scaling Study	45 45 45 46 48
Fig. 48. Fig. 49A. Fig. 49B. Fig. 50. Fig. 51. Fig. 52.	Burggraf Test Equipment for Measuring Time of Set of Concrete Molding Modulus of Rupture Specimens Molds for Casting, Freezing and Thawing Specimens and Compression Cylinders Sonic Apparatus for Determining Modulus of Elasticity of Concrete Test Specimens Dyked Areas for Scaling Study Subsequent Results of Scaling Study	45 45 46 48 48

É

<u>i naj</u>



PART I

INTRODUCTION

In May 1940, the administration of the Michigan State Highway Department, realized the need for a comprehensive evaluation of modern theories of design and construction practice in concrete pavements. Therefore, it was decided to let contracts for the construction of an experimental concrete pavement project embodying certain controversial and development features which could be used as a study in establishing criteria for concrete pavement design and construction. To this end, the Michigan Test Road was constructed on M-115, between US-10 and M-66, in Clare and Osceola counties, (figures 1 and 2) consisting of 17.8 miles of 22 foot concrete pavement. The test road is further identified as State projects F 18-20, C3; F 18-20, C4; and F 67-37, C6 or Federal Aid Projects 337-D (2); 337-E (2) and 337-F (4) respectively. The test road is essentially divided into two test projects. One project 10.1 miles in length is devoted to a study of the many principles and factors incidental to design and construction. The other 7.7 mile project is utilized for a study of durability factors particularly in regard to scaling.

The primary purpose of the Michigan Test Road is to establish certain fundamental principles in concrete pavement design and to correlate laboratory studies with construction methods in order to develop more durable concrete pavement.

The location of the test road is ideal from the standpoint of grade, alignment and average weather conditions. The maximum grade is 0.65 percent, the maximum curvature 0° -45' with an approximate average curve length of 3500 feet. The length of the entire project is sufficient to reduce the variables of construction to a minimum for each feature investigated. With the exception of a few thousand feet of clay underlying a one-foot sand cushion, the entire project was placed on a uniform sand subgrade previously constructed in 1937. This subgrade condition insured a uniformity in density and friction which should introduce few variables in the analysis of the problems.

A meteorological station has been established from which a complete continuous record of local weather conditions will be obtained for the duration of the study.

It is estimated that it will require four to five years to make a complete analysis of all of the factors involved, including the subsequent investigations which follow the completion of the construction of the project. Periodic reports will be made as the work progresses.

PRELIMINARY STUDIES

7

Prior to the construction of the Michigan Test Road, it was necessary to make a number of preliminary studies and develop certain equipment in order to determine procedure, layout, materials to be used and types of measurements to be included in the complete study.

This work was divided into three phases namely the study of stresses in concrete pavements, development of tests and equipment, and a study of available materials.

The study of stresses in concrete pavements necessitated a review of previous work by other investigators together with a correlation of this information to the end that a definite hypothesis might be set up for the determination of certain unknown factors important to concrete pavement design. This study also determined what types of measuring devices were needed and the proper location for their installation. A number of new testing methods and devices were investigated or developed which included—

- 1. Subgrade tests and equipment.
- 2. Moisture determination and calibration of equipment.
- 3. Stress determination and calibration of equipment.
- 4. Development of slab movement measuring device.
- 5. Sonic apparatus for measuring modulus of elasticity.

The description and development of these methods or devices is not pertinent to this report and will be discussed in other reports.

A number of materials have been offered to the Highway departments for the improvement of concrete pavements. Such materials include blends of cements, additives, aggregates and joint sealers. The preliminary study of such materials comprised an evaluation by freezing and thawing methods, accelerated scaling tests and other tests for characteristics of application and durability. Studies were made upon a number of proprietary additives, natural sands and mineral fillers together with determination of proper proportioning. Various types of joint seals were studied and a special oil latex sealer was developed.

SCOPE OF THE PROJECT

Included in the test road are many of the latest ideas of modern concrete road construction. The important design studies considered with respect to modern practices are—

- 1. Spacing of expansion and contraction joints.
- 2. Expansion and contraction joint design.
- 3. Uniform slab thickness versus balanced cross sections.
- 4. Amount of reinforcing steel necessary.
- 5. Relation of pavement cross section to subgrade supporting value.
- 6. Pavement cross section thickness.
- 7. Prestressing of concrete slabs during curing.

The construction features incidental to the design project are—

- 1. Mechanical versus manual handling of concrete on subgrade.
- 2. Mechanical versus hand tamping of forms.
- 3. The use of different types of seals.

On the durability project, the constituents of concrete which might affect the durability of concrete pavement have been varied to include—

- 1. The grading of aggregates.
- 2. Various types of admixtures with Portland cement.
- 3. The use of various finishing methods.

4. The application of different methods of curing.

MEASURING DEVICES. Throughout the entire project special measuring devices have been installed including—

- 1. Electrical strain gages for measuring stresses.
- Thermocouples for temperature studies.
 Moisture cells for determining moisture
- content of concrete and subgrade soil. 4. Reference monuments for detecting slab movement.
- 5. Reference points for measuring changes in joint width.
- 6. Elevation points for measuring vertical displacement of concrete pavement slabs at joints.

In addition to the many observations made during the construction of the Michigan Test Road, a series of subsequent studies will be made following the completion of construction operations.

SUBSEQUENT STUDIES

The evaluation of the many factors included in the Michigan Test Road will be determined from these subsequent studies which will be carried on over a period of years or until such time that sufficient data will be obtained to warrant drawing ultimate conclusions. These subsequent studies include pavement condition surveys, physical and displacement measurements, and special scaling studies.

PAVEMENT CONDITION SURVEYS. Twice each year a complete visual condition survey will be conducted throughout the entire length of the Michigan Test Road to observe and record the changes occurring in the physical structure of the pavement slabs.

PAVEMENT STUDIES. On the design project, daily, seasonal and permanent measurements will be made with the various measuring devices embedded in the concrete to determine the changes in physical characteristics of the concrete with age, temperature and moisture conditions.

SCALING STUDY. The durability project will be subjected to a series of controlled calcium chloride treatments each winter season for several years to determine the relative ability of the various concrete mixtures to resist scaling and disintegration. The scaling study will be augmented by extensive laboratory work.

The general phases of the studies embodied in the Michigan Test Road have been discussed in

the introduction, the balance of the report will explain the principles and factors embodied in the design and durability projects respectively and describe briefly the work which will be carried on in the subsequent studies.

PART II

THE DESIGN PROJECT

LID structural adequacy of a concrete pavement slab from the standpoint of strength and permanency is influenced by the features of design which determine its continuity and dimensions.

The importance and the need of development of principles for adequate design in concrete pavement construction is demonstrated by the fact that three important test roads have been built to study factors of design; viz., Pittsburg (California) Test Road¹, Bates (Illinois) Test Road², and Arlington (Virginia) Test Road³. As will be shown, all of these projects have contributed many needed principles, but certain questions remain unanswered. The first two were built and tested between 1920 and 1923, the purpose of the tests being to determine the reaction of various types and designs of pavements under the accelerated action of frequent traffic loadings. These studies included measurements of such factors as —

> Subgrade moisture Subgrade bearing power Subgrade uniformity Impact and cross section.

In most cases, these factors showed definite relationships to failures and the results obtained assisted materially in developing the early empirical formulae for design of pavement slabs.

In 1925, the Public Roads administration began the theoretical study of pavement design at which time the Westergaard formulae⁴ were developed. In order to check these formulae and obtain other pertinent data, the Public Roads Administration constructed the Arlington Test Road. The results from this research provided the basis for a report "Application of the Results of Research to the Structural Design of Concrete Pavements", by E. F. Kelley⁵. In the summary of this report, Mr. Kelley states: "The discussion that has been presented leads inevitably to certain conclusions which, if accepted, require a rather drastic revision in some of the accepted ideas concerning the structural design of concrete pavements. These conclusions are open to attack principally on the ground that <u>practical experience</u> in <u>certain localities</u> or <u>under</u> certain conditions does not always support them."

If it be true that there is disparagement between these conclusions and practical observations of certain localities — then before any locality can accept such conclusions, it is necessary to determine the causes for such differences and where necessary determine the proper principles of design for the given conditions.

It would seem necessary then for the need of further research to determine whether the modified Westergaard analyses of stress is the only adequate basis for concrete slab design; and further, to determine the limits of physical characteristics in subgrade and concrete to be used for design as well as to determine practical methods for their measurement.

Little attention to warping stresses has been given by the Michigan State Highway Department. Study should be made of their importance and how these stresses are affected by various joint spacings. A method of evaluating slab strengthening at joints by various methods should be determined. The economical value of reinforcing steel versus various joint spacings should also be considered.

(1), (2), (3), (4) and (5) - See bibliography.

			The second	and a second
5 120'E-60'C-30'D-9-7-9'-60"Steel 120'E-60'C-30'D-9-7-9'-60"Steel	a 2403-50°C-30°D-9-7-9°-60°5test	10 R4-1 IC 460'E - 60'C - 30'D - 9-7-9"- 60" \$1sel	K 83-1 10 400'E-60'C-30'D-9-7-9'-60''Steat	480'E - 60'C - 30'D -0-7-9"- 60 Slast
19 500'E - 60'0 - 30'0 - 9-7 - 9"- 60'Steel 10 #5	10 • 900'E - 60'0 - 30'D - 9-7-9" - 60 131ed1	IDA PS-4 CONTRACTOR	1800/6-60/0-30/	0-9-7-9"-60'\$test :4
15 Ič A.3-5 IT		2700°E - 60°C - 30°D - 9 - 7 - 9° - 60°S + 44	t t	174 Na-b Er
2F	2700'E-30'G-15'D-0-7-9'-37'\$1to1	1	8° 1.4-5\$2K	23
FE BOO'E- 60'Q- \$'0-9-7-5'-37" 51+es.	IE A3-5 26 900	16-300-130-9-7-9 Sieel 1	5125 7D 200'E-30'C-15'D-9-7-9"-31" Stee).	10 27 EC 480'E-30'C-150
9-7-5-3751661 2 450'6 - 30'5 - 13'0 - 9-7-9-37'51661 2 450'E - 30'5 - 13'0 - 9	25 2.9 25 -7 - 3 - 3751sel −8 240 E- 30- 150 -9 -7 - 5 - 3	28 38 120°E - 30°C - 15'D - 9 - 7 - 0' - 37'S	1881 24120E-20C-0-7-9-HoSteel 240'E-20C-9	-7 - 9 ⁴ - ND 314-91
30 480'E - 20'C - 3-7 - 97ks Steel 22 9 8 8 8 8	480'E-20'0-9-7-9'- No Steel 30 1	200'E - 20'C - 9-7-9'- No Stest	30 1 1 10 10 1 10 10	la Siesi 312
32 i≅00°€ - 20°C - 9-7-9°-№ 5	Gel	312 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 -	7 2700'E - 20'C - 9-7-9" No Sloel	
	371454		STATE MOD. 18-504. 0701 615.7012+073 31	E PROJ. 47-3303. 134-097
• ·	i	1	2700 E - 200-9-7-0 - Ha Steel	/
	1800'E-10'S-9-7-	B*~ No Steel	46 41 49 \$COT	4D E - 1013- 9-7-9" - Ha Steel
49 5 10 0007-106-9-7-8*-No Steel R8-4	40 40 460'E-10'0-9-7-9"-No Stori 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40	-196 - 9 -7 - 9' - No Steel 46 4890'E - 196	-9-7-9"- No Steal 40 49 240E-10C-8-7-9	"ito staal 00 48 -
120'5-10'0 ² 9-7-9"-110 51401 120'5-30'0-9-7-9"-37"31001 120'E-30'0-9-7-9"-57"	1001 101 120'E - 30'0 - 9-7-3-37'Steel 120'E - 30'C - 9-7-5'	- 37*51est 10 E - 30'G - 9-7-9 - 37*51sst 16 87 120'E	- 30'C - 9 - 7 - 9' - 37"Steet 8' 10 - 30'C - 9 - 7 - 9 BRIDGE 84	04 120'E - 30'C - 8'- No Ulasi
atilia. 120E-20'G-8'-№ \$1sel * ⁶⁹ 36 300'E-1	5°C−8°− ₩4 51891 500 ⁴⁰ 300 ⁵ € - 10°C - 8°-	- No 31001 - 60'74 - 60'64	-30°D • 8- 5- 8° • 60°Stani f3 76 -30°D • 8- 5- 8° • 60°Stani i20°E • 30°50'D-8-15-15	- 37 [°] 51001. ⁷⁰ ⁷⁰
10016-20(0.8-0.0 ²	2]94 120'E - 20'C 0 30'G - 7"- He Silet 64 06	120'E - 20'G - 7'-He Sin+1	300'E - 15"C - 7"- No Staal	300'S - 10'O - 7" - Ho Steal
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	······································
T5.180°E - 30°C - 8 - 7 - 5° No 31e2	as Curing- 100'E - 9-7-8'-No Stee).	74 1.5 - 160/8 - 20/6 9-7-5" No Steat	120°E - 20°C - 9 - 7 - 9 "Np Sige!	10 A1 10 A2
1982 - 197 - 9-1-9-1 - 9-1-9-1 - 9-1-9-1 - 9-1-9-1 - 9-1-9-1 - 9-1-9-1 - 9-1-9-1 - 9-1-9-1 - 9-1-9-1 - 9-1-9-1	120'E- 20'C- 9-7 -9' - No St	szeł josz.	120'E - 15'G - 9-7-9"- No \$146!	1052
		Futher Dozign Studios - Series II.A - D and 22.4 E. gra described in Series 7		MICHIGAN STATE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT. 6.00HALD KENTEDY. STATE HIGHWAY COMMISSIONER
		g parasing upunka.	Tolermosoujele Assemble, Sieb Movement Bos. Control Sinb 2	MICHIGAN TEST ROAD CONCRETE DESIGN STUDY
				PERFORMANCE DIVISION DESCARCE D

FIG. 3. SCHEMATIC DIAGRAM OF DESIGN PROJECT

In order to include for study the many important design features previously discussed, it was necessary to divide the design project of the Michigan Test Road into ten test areas. Each test area, has been established for the purpose of studying a certain design feature under controlled conditions. The test areas, designated as series 1 to 10 and described in "Summary of Test Areas of Design Project", table 1, have been further subdivided into divisions and sections in order to facilitate the study of a particular design feature under different conditions of slab construction. The divisions and sections are designated in table 1 by letters and numerals respectively.

In addition to table 1, which includes important information pertinent to each test series and division, a schematic "Diagram of Design Project" (figure 3) has been prepared to show the relative location of the various features with respect to the entire design project.

The primary features of pavement design included in the design project and discussed briefly in the following text are the spacing and design of expansion and contraction joints, pavement cross section and steel reinforcement.

The methods of measuring physical conditions relevant to the above studies will be described as well as the several incidental studies carried on in conjunction with the construction of the design project.

DELIMITATIONS. The pavement on this project was constructed for the most part on a subgrade in which the standard practice of the Michigan State Highway Department has been used. Inasmuch as no control of the subgrade

- *RS = Relief Section, numeral desig-
- Abs = relief Social, social and the so

EXPANSION JOINTS:

- DB-1=Standard Dowel Bar Expansion Joint Assembly. DB=Standard Dowel Bar Contraction
- DB = Standard Dowel Bar Contraction Joint Assembly. Translode = Translode Base Expansion Joint Assembly. Translode Angle = Translode Angle Unit Expansion Joint Assembly.
- TE=Thickened Edge with Corner Bars.

CONTRACTION JOINTS:

- CONTRACTION JOINTS:
 Type 1-B=DB, with groove and poured filler.
 Type 2-A=DB, with premolded filler and metal parting strip at bottom.
 Type 2=B=DB, with groove and poured filler, parting strip at bottom.
 Type 3=DB, with groove and poured filler with metal divider plate.
 Type 4=Continuous plate dowel with groove and poured filler.
 Type 5=Keylode contraction joint, poured filler.

- DUMMY PLANE OF WEAKNESS

JOINTS:

- R=Steel mesh reinforcement con-tinuous through joint.
- CURING-Wetted straw was used throughout design project.
- EXPANSION JOINT WIDTH-One inch throughout design project.
- FURTHER DESIGN STUDIES-Series 11A-D and Series 12A-E were con-structed in conjunction with Series 7 of Durability Project because of insufficient space on Design Project.

JOINT FILLER AND SEAL:

- Type 1-Fiber filler with asphalt-latex
- seal.

- Type 1—Ther filler with asphalt-rates seal.
 Type 3—Special type using removable forms and seal top, bottom and sides with asphalt-latex.
 Type 4—Asphalt-latex bottom premolded rubber seal.
 Type 5—Fiber filler with thermoplastic seal.
 Type 6—Fiber filler with asphalt SOA seal.

TABLE I.							b.
SUMMARY	OF	TEST	AREAS	ΘN	DESIGN	PROJECT	
							7

5	aries	Divíslan	No. el Sects.	Stat Begin	End	Pavement	Steel lbs.por 100 Sa Fi	Fro	Spacing Contr.	1Pma	Joint Fillor and Seal	Type Fra.	Load Tran	nsfar D'mv	Width of Exp. Joint	Lengih, in Fast	Nomensisture Section Markers
-	ŝ	La realiza	0-1101	764 00	770+00	9-7-9	69	120	60'	30~	Type 1	DB-1	DB	₽ mj fl	17	600:-	8B/S
	1	A B	3	770+00 773+60	773+60 780+80	9-7-9 9-7-9	60 60	120 ⁻ 240-	60 60	30 30	Type 1 Type 1	DB-1 DB-1	DB DB	R	tr tr	350 [.] 720 [.]	\$/1A 1A/18
		*BS-t	1	760+80	781+40	9-7-9	60	60 4	None	30'	Type 1	DB-1 and TE		R	1.	60-	1B/RS-1
		*RS-2		785 +20 785 +20 785 +80	786 + 20 786 + 80 791 + 60	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	69 69 61	60° 60°	None ED	30 ⁻ 30 ⁻	Type 1 Type 1 Type 1	TE	08 	R	1	460° 60° 480°	NS-1/10 10/RS-2 RS-2/10
		+RS-2 C	1	791+60 792+20	792+20 797+00	9-7-9 9-7-9	60 68	60 ⁻ 480 ⁻	Nona 50'	30 [,] 30 [,]	Type 1 Type 1	TE TE and		R	i.	60,	1C/RS-2
		•R\$-3		797 + 00 797 + 60	797+60	9-7-9 9-7-9	60 60	60 [.] 900-	None 69'	30* 30*-	Type 1 Type 1	D8-1 D8-1 (D8-1	DB	8 8 8	1.	490' 60' 900'	HS-2/10 10/RS-3 RS-3/10
		•RS-4 . D	i	805+6D 807+20	897 + 20 816 + 29	9-7-9 9-7-9	60 60	60 [.] 900	None 60	30 38	Type 1 Type 1	DB-1 DB-1	08 09	Ř	17 17	60 ⁻ 900-	1D/RS-4 FIS-4/1D
		*RS-5 E		816+20 817+40	817+40 835+40 835 + 61	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	60 60	60 ⁻ \$800-	None 50' None	30 ⁻ 30 ⁻	Тура 1 Тура 1	DB-1 DB-1	DB	B	1	120 ⁻ 1800- 120-	1D/RS-5 RS-5/1E 1E/RS-5
		F Total fer	i i naih of i	836-1-60 Series 1(S	853+60 sections A.	9-7-9 B. C. D. E.	60 and F)	2700-	50'	30'	Type 1	08-1	DB	R	j.	2700' 9360'	RS-5/1F
	2	+RS-5	1	863 - 60	864+20	9-7-9	60	30	Nana	15′	Type 1	08-1		R	1.	61	1F/RS-5
		•RS-5	1	691+20 891+20 891+80	891 + 20 891 + 80 989 - 80	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	31 37 37	2700* 30* 1800*	30 None 39	16' 15' 15'	Type 1 Type 1 Type 1	08-) DB-1 DB-1	08 	R		2700* 60* 1800*	HS-5/2F 2F/RS-5 BS-5/2E
		•Я\$-5 Ъ	1	909+60 910+49	\$10+40 \$13+40	9-7-9 9-7-9	37 37	30 [.] 900 [.]	None 301	15 [.] 15 [.]	Type 1 Type 1	DB-1 DB-1	DB	B		60 ⁴ 900	2E/RS-5 RS-5/2D
		*85-4 D *85-1		919+40 919+70 928-4.70	919 + 70 928 + 70 929 + 60	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	87 37 37	900- 30-	None 38' None	16 ⁷ 16 ⁷	Type 1 Type 1 Type 1	DB-1 DB-1	DB	ß	1	900° 30'	20/HS-4 RS-4/2D
		C	1	929+00	933 + 80	9-7-9	37	460	30	15'	Type 1	and TE TE	DB	R	12	30' 480'	2D/RS-1 RS-1/20
		•H5-Z C •BS-2	1	933+80 934+10 938+90	\$38+90 \$38+20	9-7-9 9-7-9	37 37	480° 38'	None 30 [.] None	15 ⁻ 15 ⁻	Type 1 Type 1 Type 1	TE	DB	R	1	480° 30°	RS-2/20 20/RS-2
		0 •R5-3	1	939+20 944+00	944 + 00 944 + 30	9-7-9 9-7-9	37 37	480* 30*	30 [.] None	话 话	Type 1 Type 1	TE TE and	DB	ß	1.	480	RS-2/2C
		B	3	944+30 951±50	951-j-50 955-j-10	9-7-9 9-7-9	37 37	240 [.] 120 [.]	30 [.] 30 [.]	15 ⁷	Type 1 Type 1	DB-1 DB-1 DB-1	DB	R	1.	30/ 720 360/	2C/HS-3 RS-3/28 28/24
-		Total ia	ngils of s	Series 2—(S	ections F,	E, D, C, B,	and A)				.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,					9150	
	3	A B	3 3	955 + 10 955 + 20 955 + 20	958 + 70 965 + 90 956 + 10	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	None Nose Nose	120 ⁻ 240 ⁻ 20-	20 [,] 20 [,] `	None None None	Тура 1 Тура 1 Тура 1	DB-1 DB-1 DB-1	DB DB	None None	1.	360*- 720* 20*	2A/3A 3A/3B 3D/05.4
		C +RS-4	1	966+10 970+90	97099 97119	9-7-9 9-7-9	None	480- 20-	20 [.]	None None	Typa 1 Typa 1	08-1 DB-1	50B	None	÷	480. 20'	RS-4/3C 3C/RS-4
		•R5-4		971+10 975+90 975 10	975 + 99 976 + 10 597 - 50	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	None None None	480- 20-	20	None None	Type 1 Type 1	DB-1 D9-1		None None None	1.	490° 20'	RS-4/3C 3C/RS-4 RS-4/3C
		•RS-4 D	1	980 + 90 981 - 10	981+10 990+10	9-7-9 9-7-9	None None	20 900	20	None None	Туре 1 Туре 1	DB-1 DB-1	DB	None	1. 1.	20 900	3C/RS-4 RS-4/3D
		*RS-4 D *RS-5	1	990+10 990+30 999±30	990 + 30 999 + 30 999 ± 70	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	None None None	20 ⁻ 900- 20-	20	None None None	Type 1 Type 1 Type 1	D9-1 D9-1	DB	None None Mone	r r	20* 908* 40*	3D/HS-4 HS-4/3D 30/HS-5
		E +RS-5		999+70 1017+70	1017+70 1017+90	9-7-9 9-7-9	None None	1800 ⁻ 20 ⁻	28	None None	Type 1 Type 1	DB-1 D8-1	<u>a</u>	Nons Nons	. -	1800 [.] 20 [.]	RS-5/3E 3E/RS-5
		Bridge *RS-5 F		1017+90 1018+20 1018±40	1018+20 1018+40 1045+40	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	None None None	Eridg 20' 2700;	a over Na 201	None None	Type 1	D8-1 08-1	DR.	None	17 10	30* 20* 2700*	RS-5/3F
-		Totai le	ngth of I	Serios 3—(8	Sections A,	8, 6, D, E,	and F)									SODD ²	
	4	•RS-5 F •RS-5	1	1045 + 40 1045 + 60 0-3 - 65 4	1045+60 0-3+65.4 0-3-85.4	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	None None None	10 ⁴ 2700- 10-	18'	None None None	Type 2 Type 2 Type 2	D8-1 D8-1	DB	None None None	1.	20 [.] 2700 [.] 20 [.]	3F/RS-5 RS-5/4F 4F/RS-5
		Bridga E		0-3+85.4 1+20	1 + 29 19 + 20	9-7-9	Nose	1800-	Bridg 19	e over None	Muskege Type 2	n River DB-1	=	None	ī	134.69 [,] 1800	HS-6/4E
		•RS-5 D •RS-4	1	19+20 19+49 28+40	19+49 28+49 28+50	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	None None None	10* 900* 10*	10	None None	Type 2 Type 2 Type 2	D8-1 D8-1 D8-1	DB	Nona Nona Nona		20* 900* 10*	4E/RS-5 RS-5/4D 4D/RS-4
		D •RS-4	Í	28+50 37+50	37+50 37+60	9-7-9 8-7-9	None None	900 [.] 10 [.]	10	None None	Type 2 Type 2	D8-1 D8-1	DB	None	i. T	900 10	RS-4/40 4D/RS-4
		€ +RS-4	1	37+60 42+40 42+50	42 + 49 42 + 59 47 + 30	9-7-9	None None None	480*	18	None	Туре 2 Туре 2 Туре 2	DB-1 D8-1 D8-1	D8 78	None None None	1.	480* 10* 480*	RS-4/4C 4C/RS-4 RS-4/4C
		+RŠ-4 C		47+30 47+40	47+40 52+20	9-7-9 9-7-9	None None	10 ⁴	10'	None None	Type 2 Type 2	DB-1 DB-1	DB	None None	1* 1*	10 480-	4C/RS-4 RS-4/4C
		#\$-4 B A	1 3 3	52+20 52+30 59+59	52+38 59+50 63+10	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	None None None	10 ⁻ 240 ⁻ \$20 ⁻	10	None None None	Type 2 Type 2 Type 2	08-1 08-1 08-1	DB	None None None	1.	10 720* 360*	4C/HS-4 RS-4/4B 4B/4A
-	_	Total lea	nath of I	Sorles 4—{\$	Sections A,	B, C, D, E,	and F)				.,,,		<u>.</u>		<u> </u>	8930 [,]	
	5	B	3	63+19 65+70 70+30	66+70 70+39 73+90	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	37 37 37	120 ⁻ 120 ⁻ 120-	30' 30' 30'	None None None	Type 3 Type 3 Type 3	D9-1 D9-1 D8-1	Type-18 Type-2A Type-2A	Nons Nons Nons	1.	359 [,] 369 [,] 350 [,]	4A/5A 5A/5B 5B/5C
		Ď	3	73+90 77+50	77 + 50 81 + 10	9-7-9 9-7-9	37 87	120 120	38 38	None None	Type 3 Type 8	DB-1 BD-1	Type 3 Type 3	None None	1. 1.	360 [.] 360 [.]	5C/5D 5D/6E
		F G Bridge	3	81 + 10 84 + 20 86 + 57 5	84+70 86+57.5 87+82.5	9-7-9 9-7-9	37 37	120* 120* Beldo	30' 30'	None None Idate B	Type 3 Type 3 ranch Co	D8-1 DB-1	Туре 4 Туро 4	None None	ŀ	360 ⁺ 187.5 ⁻ 125-	5E/6F 5F/5Q
		G Tatal lor	B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B	87+82,5 Series 6—(S	86 + 30 setions A,	9-7-9 B, C, D, E,	37 F and G)	120	30'	None	Туре 3	DB-1	Туро 4	None	۲.,	172,5 [,] 2520 [,]	
-	6	A	δ	68. + .30	94+80	8* Unitorm	None	120	30	None	Type 2	1. Cor Bars.	1' Cer Bars	Nono	11	600	50/6A
		B	5	94 ÷ 30 190 ÷ 39	109-1-30	8" Uniform	None	300	29/ 15/	None	Туре 2 Туре 2	Bats**	t' Cor Bars 1' Cor	Nona Nona	1.	600 [.]	68/68 68/60
		D	2	106+30	112+30	B" Uniform	None	300	10	Nont	Type 2	Bars** 1" Cor	Bars 1" Cor	None	1'	600	SC/6D
-		Tatal le	ngth of t	Series 6—(S	Sections A,	B, C, and D	0					Bars*•	Bars	<u> </u>		2400	
, e	T	BC	5 5	152+39 118+30 124+30	118+30 124+30 130+38	8-6-8 8-6-8	60 87 Netia	120 ⁻ 120 ⁻ 120 ⁻	60 [.] 30 [.] 20 [.]	30" 15" None	1 ygo 2 Typo 2 Typo 2	DB-1 DB-1 DB-1	09 08 08	R R None	1 1	500° 500°	7A/7B 7B/7C
÷		D Total la	5 ngth of 1	130+30 Series 7(\$	138 30 octions A	8-6-9 B, C and D	None	120	ti ^r	Notia	Typa 2	DB-1	DB	None	1-	600 [.] 2400 [.]	70/70
	8	A	3	135+30	139 + 90	7º Unitergi 7º Notes	Nens	120	30 [.]	Nona	Type 2	1" Cor Bars**	1 Cor Bars	None	1.	360- 840-	7D/8A 84/8R
		c	2	148-1-30		7. Uniform	Nona	300	15	None	Type 2	Bars** 1* Cor	Bars 1º Cer	None	, 12	600	6B/6C
e"		b	2	154+30	160 + 30	7º Unitorn	None	300	- 10'	Nano	Type 2	Bars** 1* Cor Bars**	Bars 1º Gor Bars	Noria	11	600	8C/8D
-		Total in	ngth of (Series 8—(8	Sections A, 16210	B, C and D 9-7-9) Nerra	188-	30,	None	Tube &	Trane.	np	Non-	11	2400	8D/TS
	9	 А	1	162+10	180+10	9-7-9	Nens	108:	Natio	None	Туре 4	lode** Trans-	DB	None	1"	1800'	TS/9A
Ż		T.S.	ş٦	180+10	161+60	9-7-9	None	180-	(30 [,]	None	Туре 4	Trans-	Туре б	None	1.	90·}	9A/TS
-	10	A-1	<u> 1</u> 9	181 + 00 181 + 90	181+90 192+70	9-7-9 9-7-9	None None	120	20 ⁷	None	Type 4 Type 5	DB-1 DB-1	DB DB	None	1.	90-} 1080-	TS/18A-1
		A-2 B-1	9	192-j-70 203-j-50	203+59 214+90	9-7-9 9-7-9	None	120	15 20	Nons	Type 5 Type 2	DB-1 None	DB None	None None	11	1080 ⁻ 1080 ⁻	10A-1/10A-2 10A-2/10B-1 10B-1/10B-9
<u>.</u>		B-2		691+75	692+10	9-7-9	Series 71	1 01 Du	rability f	roject	1790 C	Tran-	175814			63u	76/70.118
	"	A.	'	uaz + 10	uws+00	,	au	30	Phure,	110610	1940	lode Angie				99°	
		8 85		693+00 694+20	694+20 694+30 697 - 00	9-7-9 9-7-9	60 60	120° 10°	None	None None	Type 6 Type 6	ы 11				120' 10' 362'	11A/11B
		RS D		697 +92 698 + 00	\$98+00 704+00	9-7-9 9-7-9	50 60	8 600	Nens None	None None	Тура 6 Тура 6	к				600 ⁻	110/110
		RS		704+00 704+18 721-175	704+18 721+75 729+19	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	l 60 Series 7	18' E and 1	None Fot Dur	Nons ability	Type 6 Project	ĸ		-	1.	18 [,] 1757, 635,	
-	12	A	1	728-1-10	729+00	9-7-\$	None	90	Nono	None	Туре б	Trans.			1.	90,	7E/7F-12A
		в	1	729 + 60	730 + 20	9-7-9	Nona	120'	Nona	None	Туре б	Angla		_	1.	120'	12A/12B
		AS C BS		730 +20 730 +30 733 +90	730+30 733+90 734+00	9-7-9 9-7-9 9-7-9	None None None	10 350 10	Nono Nono Nono	None None None	Туре б Туре б Туре б	а и и	$ \equiv $			10° 360′ 10'	12B/12C
		D RS	1	734+00 736+42	736+42 736+52	9-7-9 9-7-9	Plona Piona	242' 19'	None	Nana Nona	Тура 6 Тура 6					242 18	12C/12D
		RS	i	742+52 742+52 742+62	742+62 763+45	9-7-9 9-7-9	None Saries 8/	1 00037 1 107 1 01 Du	recitie None rebility F	None None rojsst	тура б	ü	=	_	i.	10° 1084	12E-7F/8A
													·				





TYPE RS 2 FIG. 5. DETAIL SKETCH OF EXPANSION RELIEF SECTION

ŢΕ

3

.

ΠĒ

R.V











supporting value has been made in the construction of the subgrade, it will be necessary to use the subgrade modulus values found. It is hoped that in the comparison of various sections, subgrades having the same modulus will be encountered.

In order to eliminate excess costs in the construction of this experimental pavement, it has seemed advisable to maintain a standard cross section of 9-7-9 as much as possible, in accordance with the Michigan State Highway Department 1940 Specifications and Plans. However, to obtain comparison of equivalent uniform thickness slabs and reduced cross section, it has been necessary to introduce a few thousand feet of these types.

As has been pointed out in the scope of the Test Road, the spacing and design of transverse joints is one of the three main design features included in the design project, therefore, the subject will be given considerable attention and study.

JOINT SPACING AND DESIGN

In the study of joints, especially those for expansion and contraction purposes, the proper spacing will be determined by permissible maximum stress intensities induced by linear frictional restraint and flexural weight restraint, but the detailed design features of the joint itself are determined by the desired structural interaction between jointed slab units.

The design of tranverse joints necessitates consideration of structural features which enable the joint to perform the function for which it is intended, including: movement for expansion or







Fig. 12. Translode Expansion Joint Assembly Used on Stress Curing Section

contraction, load transfer where necessary and flexibility for warping and adequate seal against infiltration of water and foreign matter. In order to study these features, several units of various types of expansion and contraction joints were installed. With respect to expansion joints, the efficiency of dowel bars and other load transfer devices will also be compared with thickened edge joints.

In conjunction with the contraction joint spacing investigation, four major types of load transfer will be studied; first, aggregate interlock with load transfer; second, aggregate interlock only; third, load transfer without aggregate interlock; and fourth, continuous plate dowel.

In some cases, both in expansion and contraction joints, corner bars 1¼ inch in diameter and 18 inches in length were used to maintain mutual elevation of the slabs and the efficacy of this method is to be studied.



The dowel bar chair assembly shall be installed in such a manner as to secure proper alignment and position of dowel bars in the completed pavement

DETAIL OF DOWEL BAR CHAIR TO BE USED WHERE CORNER BARS ARE CALLED FOR. No Scale.



Fig. 14. Type I Contraction Joint Assembly

Fig. 13. Detail Sketch of Contraction and Plane of Weakness Joints Used on Project

EXPANSION JOINTS

In the design project, considerable emphasis has been placed upon the study of joint spacing, expansion space, joint design and joint construction. The expansion joints have been spaced to give sections of 120, 360, 480, 600, 900, 1800 and 2700 foot lengths for various cross sections and various amounts of reinforcing steel. In addition, sections with 300 foot expansion joint spacings were constructed in the 7 and 8 inch uniform pavement without reinforcing steel.

A one inch joint width was maintained for the various lengths of slabs. In the case of long expansion joint intervals, relief sections, shown in figures 4 to 8, have been placed between each series of slab sections in order to relieve any movement in excess of the amount provided for in the regular one inch expansion joint opening. Tests on joint width movement will be a primary factor in determining the necessary expansion opening.

Load transfer at expansion joints throughout the entire test road with the exception of series 1-C, 2-C, 6, 8 and 9A of the design project consist of standard ³/₄ inch dowel bars, 15 inches long, spaced 15 inches apart. The dowel bars were held in position by a Truss-Assembly shown in figures 9 and 10A.

In series 1-C and 2-C the expansion joints were constructed with thickened edge using four





1¼ inch diameter dowel bars, 18 inches long. Each bar was placed 9 inches from the corner of the slab (figure 5). The corner bar assembly is illustrated in figures 10B and 11.

The corner dowel bars were used in series 6 and 8, uniform cross section pavement in order to maintain mutual elevation of slabs due to changes in subgrade.

Throughout the stress curing section, series 9A, "Translode" units were used, because an open joint was necessary for this particular section as discussed further in this bulletin, (figure 12).

Five different combinations of joint fillers and sealers were installed in the expansion joints throughout the design section. They are described as types 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5, in table 1. The different joint sealers are described in detail under incidental studies.

CONTRACTION JOINTS WITH LOAD TRANSFER

Consistent with the spacing of expansion joints at specified intervals and amount of reinforcing steel, contraction joints have been constructed at 10, 15, 20, 30 and 60 foot intervals. These various spacings have been included in the construction of the various cross sections and expansion joint spacing as described in "Summary of Design Project", table 1.

In general, the contraction joints were constructed in accordance with Michigan State Highway Department standard practice and designated as type 1Å (figure 13). Several installations of the other types shown in figure 13 are included in the design project for comparative study. They are designated as types 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 as described below. STANDARD CONTRACTION JOINT—Type 1A—1B. This type of joint consists of $\frac{3}{4}$ inch diameter by 15 inch dowel bars spaced 15 inches center to center and held in place by an approved installing device. The bars are coated entirely with asphalt paint (RC2) to break the bond. Directly over the center of the dowel bar assembly a $2\frac{1}{2}$ inch weakened plane is formed in the surface of the pavement. In type 1A joint, the weakened plane is formed by inserting a $\frac{1}{4}$ inch by $2\frac{1}{2}$ inch premolded bituminous felt at the time of finishing operation. In type 1B joint, the weakened plane is formed by a special plate grooving device and the groove is poured full of joint sealing compound (figures 13 and 14).

CONTRACTION JOINT WITH PARTING STRIP — Type 2A-2B. This joint is essentially the same as type 1A and 1B described above, except that a piece of metal 1 inch high is installed in the bottom of the slab and made to coincide vertically with the weakened plane in the top of the slab. The purpose of this strip of metal is to insure cracking of the slab in a vertical plane (figure 15). Fig. 16. Contraction Joint Assembly with Dowel Bars and Steel Dividing Plate





FIG. 17. DETAIL SKETCH OF TYPE 3 CONTRACTION JOINT WITH LOAD TRANSFER DEVICE AND STEEL DIVIDING PLATE





Supporting shoe not less than four shall be used for each II' Lane



Fig. 19A. Continuous Plate Dowel Contraction Joint Assembly

CONTRACTION JOINT WITH FACE PLATE — DB Type 3. The contraction joint consists of the same dowel bar assembly as described for the two previous joints with the exception of including a 22 gage metal face plate extending the full length of the joint and from the bottom of the slab to within $\frac{1}{2}$ inch of the surface (figure 16). The surface of the joint was prepared as shown in figure 17, and eventually sealed with suitable joint sealing compound.

CONTINUOUS DOWEL PLATE — Type 4. The continuous plate dowel illustrated in figures 18 and 19A consists of a continuous No. 10 gage metal plate running the entire length of the joint and supported in proper position by two vertical web members.

The joint is designed to provide continuous load transfer across the joint and prevent passage of water through the joint. A few installations of this type of contraction joint device were made in the design project at the locations shown in the "Summary of Design Project", table 1.

KEYLODE CONTRACTION JOINT UNIT— Type 5. The Keylode Contraction joint unit is also a continuous plate dowel contraction joint similar to type 4, except that the two vertical web members which support the plate dowel are fabricated in such a manner as to allow interlocking action of concrete across the joint. The joint is fully illustrated in figures 19B and 20.

WEAKENED PLANE "DUMMY" JOINTS. In standard Michigan practice, the "dummy" type of joint illustrated as type A (figure 13) is placed midway between the expansion and contraction joints. In order to evaluate this type of joint with contraction joints at close spacing, the dummy joints were placed at 15 and 30 foot spacings for 8-6-8 and 9-7-9 cross section pavement using 37 and 60 pounds per 100 square feet of reinforcing steel.

Another important factor in the construction of concrete pavements, in addition to proper joint design and spacing, is the adequate design of the pavement cross section for proper stress distribution.



Fig. 18. Detail Sketch of Type 4, Contraction Joint with Continuous Plate Dowel Load Transfer Device

Fig. 19B. Keylode Contraction Joint Assembly

PAVEMENT CROSS SECTION

In the feature of structural strength, the concrete pavement cross section can be designed to meet practically any requirement. By thickening certain sections of the slab which may be subjected to more severe stresses than other parts, and by limiting the horizontal dimensions of slab units through the use of joints, uniformity of structural strength may be economically balanced throughout all parts of the pavement. Also, adequate and uniform subgrade support is necessary to insure and maintain uniform stress distribution throughout the pavement slab.

In the construction of the pavement in the design project, consideration has been given to such controversial factors as load capacity of subgrade versus slab thickness, also the balanced cross section versus equivalent uniform thickness. Consequently, four different types of cross sections were set up for study, namely 9-7-9 Michigan State Highway Department standard cross section, 8 inch uniform, the approximate equivalent of 9-7-9; 8-6-8 and its approximate equivalent 7 inch uniform. The various cross sections are illustrated in figure 21.

In addition to the studies of joint spacing and pavement cross section, the use of steel reinforcement in pavement construction has been given consideration.

STEEL REINFORCEMENT

The use of steel in concrete pavements has been considered necessary only for the purpose of controlling cracks in slabs after the cracks have been formed. However, with the modern trend towards longer expansion joint spacing and shorter slabs and better subgrade conditions it is believed, by many engineers, that steel reinforcement may be dispensed with. The present shortage of construction materials has made it even more necessary to give consideration to the problem of pavement design without steel.

> Fig. 20. Detail Sketch of Keylode Contraction Joint Assembly, Type 5



With Installing Equipment in Place)



Fig. 21. Detail Sketch of Pavement Cross-Sections

In order to obtain more pertinent data relative to such questions as —

l. The relationship of plain uniform cross section to reinforced "balanced" cross section.

2. Economies of reinforced cross sections of both types versus plain cross sections with adequate jointing.

3. The adequate amount of reinforcing steel versus various designs. Several test sections were constructed using 9-7-9, 8-6-8, 8 inch and 7 inch uniform cross section consisting of plain concrete, and reinforced concrete with 60 pounds per hundred square feet and 37 pounds per hundred square feet. Joints were spaced in the manner as described under joint spacing and design.

In addition to the various design problems previously described, it was necessary to give considerable attention to design and construction of suitable measuring equipment for installation in the design project.

METHODS OF MEASUREMENT

For the proper appraisal of the structural efficiency of the elements of design considered in this project, periodic visual examinations together with measurement of displacements and physical conditions must be made. The program of observations as set up by the Public Roads Administration* will be adhered to.

DISPLACEMENT MEASUREMENTS

The displacement of the slab which will occur due to volume change of concrete, superimposed loads and subgrade differentials will be determined by change in joint width and slab movement horizontally and vertically.

JOINT WIDTH MEASUREMENTS. Joint width is measured by change in position of reference points located one on each side of the joint, as shown in figure 22. The reference points consist of holes drilled in heads of galvanized roofing nails. A Starrett micrometer caliper reading to 1/1000 inch was adapted for taking measurements.

To insure accuracy of the readings and avoid any criticism of the results in the use of roofing nails as reference points, in one section consisting of a day's work, a series of brass plugs held in place with sulphur were installed. If variations develop that have been caused by corrosion of the nail heads, the entire project will be replaced with brass plugs set in sulphur.

Initial readings were taken the morning following the placing of the concrete pavement and subsequent readings for daily, seasonal and permanent joint width determinations will be made for the duration of the study (figure 23).

LEVEL MEASUREMENTS. Concurrent with the establishment of reference points for joint width study, 5/16 inch by 21½ inch carriage bolts were embedded in the fresh concrete adjacent to the joint to serve as elevation points for subsequent level readings to determine the vertical displacement of the pavement at the joint (figure 22). The day following the placement of the concrete, the initial elevation of all level points were established *See Appendix I. by precise level measurements. Subsequent level readings will be repeated during the summer and winter seasons of the first year after construction and at longer periods thereafter (figure 24).

In conjunction with the vertical displacements, horizontal displacements will be measured at definite locations (figure 23) throughout the design project, provisions having been made to measure the horizontal movement of the concrete slabs of various lengths.

SLAB MOVEMENT MEASUREMENT. The slab movement is determined with respect to a fixed point in the subgrade. The fixed reference monument in the subgrade consists of an 8 inch pipe casing, 6 feet long, set to grade, the interior of which is excavated. Centered in the casing is a 2 inch pipe to a depth of 12 feet below the concrete pavement, on top of which is placed a chrome plated pipe cap having reference marks etched in the surface. In this manner the shifting of subgrade soil due to frost action or slab movement will not affect the original position of the reference pipe. Directly over this assembly and cast in the concrete is a specially designed monument box containing a machined brass bushing to accommodate a brass ring containing a glass plate having etched cross hairs. By means of a special telescopic measuring device constructed to permit longitudinal and transverse movement, the increments of relative movement of the slab with respect to the reference monument in the subgrade can be measured to 0.1 mm. Seventy-nine slab movement monuments have been established at special locations throughout the project. The reference monuments are illustrated in figures 25 and 26. For complete evaluation of slab movement measurements certain data concerning physical conditions must be obtained.

PHYSICAL MEASUREMENTS

Physical conditions to be measured are those which affect slab movements and those which are the result of slab movement such as temperature of concrete, moisture content of concrete and subgrade, strain in concrete and meteorological conditions.

Fig. 24. Elevation points to determine vertical displacement of pavement at the joint



Fig. 22. Detail Sketch Showing Relative Location of Reference Points









Fig. 25B. View of reference monument

Fig. 25A. View of telescopic measuring device

TEMPERATURE. The temperature of the concrete and subgrade are determined by means of iron and constantan wire thermocouples embedded in the concrete and subgrade at time of construction. The location of the various types of the thermocouple assemblies are shown in the "Schematic Diagram of Design Project" (figure 3). The thermocouple assemblies are illustrated in figures 27, 28 and 29.

MOISTURE CONTENT. At the same location of the thermocouples, moisture cell assemblies were also installed in the concrete pavement and subgrade to measure moisture content concurrent with displacement measurements and as desired for other studies. The moisture cells consist of two bare wire terminals separated 1 inch apart and cast in chemically pure plaster of Paris to form blocks $\frac{1}{2}$ inch by $\frac{1}{2}$ inches by $\frac{21}{2}$ inches. An electrical bridge is used to measure the resistance in ohms of potential between the two terminal wires embedded in the plaster of Paris cell. The relationship between resistance and moisture content must be determined from laboratory calibration tests. The moisture cell assemblies are shown in figures 27, 28 and 29.

STRAIN MEASUREMENTS. The measurement of strain in the concrete slab is being made at the neutral axis and at the surface of the slab. These measurements are being conducted at special locations to determine differences in tensile, compressive and warping stresses for various spacings of expansion and contraction joints.

The interior strains at the neutral axis are being measured by means of the Carlson electric strain meter. The strain meters, illustrated in figure 30, are approximately 10 inches long and $1\frac{1}{2}$ inches in diameter. They were embedded in the fresh concrete during construction operations. The principle of the Carlson strain meter is based upon the linear relationship between change in resistance of a wire with change in tension. The strain meter contains two coils of wire under tension. The resistance ratio of the two coils, which changes in direct proportion to the change in gage length of the meter, is measured directly by a portable Wheatstone bridge. Twenty-six Carlson strain meters have been placed at desired locations in the design project. The locations of the electric strain meters are noted on the 'Schematic Drawing of Design Project'' (figure 3).

Immediately over the strain meters and at a few additional locations, surface strain measurements will be determined by use of an 8 inch Berry strain gage with 1/10,000 inch dial micrometer (figure 31). In this manner, stress differentials between the surface and interior of the pavement can be analyzed for temperature and moisture changes in the concrete. The relative location of the Carlson and Berry strain gages in the pavement are illustrated in figure 32.



Fig. 27A. Moisture Cell Assembly



5'-6' Rubber tube-TYPE - A SCALE - 3/4"=1'-0" 1-0 Fordme hermocouples TYPE - B SCALE - 1"= 1'-0" Control Slab Pavement Slab CONTROL SLAB Thermocouples LAY-OUT AND LOCATION Moisture Cells.

Fig. 28. Detail Sketch of Moisture Cell and Thermocouple Assemblies for Special Studies

SUBGRADE BEARING CAPACITY. During the construction of the project and prior to the placing of the pavement, subgrade bearing tests were conducted to determine the Modulus of Subgrade Reaction "k", which is employed in Westergaards formulae⁴ for the computation of thickness of concrete pavements.

Bearing tests were made on 3 sizes of circular bearing plates, 10, 50 and 100 square inches in area. Static load was applied to the bearing plates by means of a hydraulic jack mounted under a loaded truck.

1.3

To simulate conditions which might exist under a slab, the tests were conducted with and without a surcharge on the subgrade around the bearing plates. The resisting load was determined by a ring dynamometer with 1/10,000 inch dial. The penetration of the plates was measured by averaging the readings of three 1/1,000 inch dials, spaced equally around the edge of the plate. The equipment and test set up are shown in figure 33.

In connection with the subgrade bearing tests, undisturbed soil samples were obtained by penetrating a 16 ounce metal sample can into the subgrade. Soil samples were taken directly under the bearing plate after the completion of each test and also at a short distance away from the plate. The soil samples were sealed in the cans and submitted to the laboratory for moisture and natural density tests. Finally all of the samples from a bearing test station were combined into one composite sample for further study with respect to gradation and compaction characteristics. The

(4) - See Appendix IV.)



later test consisted of compacting the soil on a vibrating table to its maximum density at the natural moisture content for the purpose of obtaining the porosity, percentage of voids (loose and compacted), and percentage of consolidation.

It has been pointed out that the subgrade bearing tests were conducted on the subgrade prior to construction of the slab. Eventually, at the same location of the bearing tests, the pavement slab will be subjected to loadings and the deflections determined. By means of Westergaards formulae the modulus of subgrade reaction "k" will be computed. The purpose of this work is an attempt to correlate these determinations of subgrade modulus with actual subgrade bearing tests in the field.

METEOROLOGICAL DATA. Throughout the construction of the test road, meteorological data was obtained including, temperature, relative humidity, precipitation, evaporation, and wind movement. The weather observation station has been permanently established and the gathering of this information will be continued for the entire period of the Test Road investigation. The meteorological equipment is illustrated in figure 34.

TRAFFIC COUNTER. An International Traffic Recorder has been installed near the center of the Test Road for the purpose of studying traffic conditions relative to the project. A record of total traffic flow will be maintained throughout the duration of the test project and the record will be tabulated in such a manner as to have available a I 1

Fig. 27B. Thermocouple Assembly



Fig. 29. Detail Sketch of Moisture Cell and Thermocouple Assemblies for Regular Installations



traffic summary including, hourly, daily, weekly, monthly and yearly vehicle count. Also, periodically the total traffic will be sampled to obtain the various percentages of different types of traffic included in the count of the traffic recorder. The purpose of the traffic study is to obtain a knowledge of the loads being imposed upon the various slab sections.

In connection with the studies on joints, pavement cross section and reinforcements previously described, a number of incidental studies pertinent to pavement design and construction were included in the design project.

INCIDENTAL STUDIES

A few incidental studies were introduced into the Michigan Test Road which were of particular interest to the Michigan State Highway Department and pertinent to the improvement of concrete slab construction. These sub-investigations comprised a study of various construction methods including: the stress curing of concrete, mechanical spreading of concrete, the use of various joint sealers and the mechanical tamping of forms.

STRESS CURING. Eighteen hundred feet of concrete pavement was placed by the stress curing method of construction which eliminates steel reinforcement and transverse joints other than expansion. The purpose of the experiment was to determine the economic and physical value of stress curing. The slabs were laid in 100 foot lengths and the prestressing of the concrete accomplished by use of canvas covered rubber hose pressure cells inserted in the joint openings. These were expanded to exert pressures based on results of tests on representative specimens 7 by 9 by 14 inches cast throughout the period of construction of the stress curing section (figure 35). The pressures were increased at a rate controlled by determinations of strength increase in specimens up to a maximum of 200 pounds per square inch. This pressure was maintained until the standard modulus of rupture beam tests reached the 7 day specification strength requirement of 550 pounds per square inch. The stress curing experiment is illustrated in figure 36.



Fig. 32. Detail Sketch of Strain Gage and Moisture Cell Assembly



Fig. 34-1. Evaporation Pan with Measuring Device



FIG. 34. METEOROLOGICAL EQUIPMENT

- Rain Gauge 2.
- Wind Direction Indicator 3.
- 4. Sling Hygrometer

5. Recording Thermometer Wind Anemometer 6. 7. Automatic Wind Direction Recorder

Another phase of highway construction considered important enough for trial and study is the mechanical handling of concrete on the subgrade.

MECHANICAL CONCRETE SPREADER. With the exception of 600 lineal feet, the concrete on the design project of the test road was placed and consolidated by means of a mechanical concrete

spreader. The purpose of this study was to compare the relative merits of mechanical spreading versus hand spreading of concrete. Comparative observations were made on the uniformity of distribution and placing of the concrete, its strength characteristics, the segregation of aggregates, relative water content and effect on finishing operations.



Fig. 36A. Detail Sketch of Stress Curing Test Section

The mechanical concrete spreader is a powerdriven four-wheel frame with suitable forward and reverse speeds, on which is mounted a reversible 14 inch spiral screw which manipulates the concrete to one side or the other at the will of the operator. The screw may be quickly adjusted vertically so that the strike-off plate, which is located behind the screw, may be used to obtain the desired height of concrete on the subgrade. The spreader was designed to handle the concrete for the full 22-foot width of the slab and to operate on the pavement forms. The pictures in figure 37 illustrate the unit in operation on the design project.

Fig. 35A. Pressure Cell in Place in Joint Opening





ELEVATION OF CELL GUARD SECTION OF PRESSURE CELL.

Fig. 36B. Detail Sketch of Stress Curing Test Section

Occurring with the studies of stress curing and the mechanical handling of concrete is the study of joint seals. The problem of adequately sealing a pavement joint was considered important enough to be included as one of the incidental studies in the design project.

JOINT SEALERS. Over a period of years the Michigan State Highway Department has given considerable attention to the study of various kinds of joint sealers. Several joint sealers having desirable characteristics were included in the design project for comparative study. The various joint sealers used are herein described and the location of each type is shown in the "Summary of Design Project", table 1.

ASPHALTIC OIL — LATEX SEAL, Type I. This material consists of a mixture of 70 parts of asphaltic oil SC-6A, 30 parts of normal rubber latex and 2 parts of hydrated lime. The materials are mixed together under controlled conditions prior to pouring into the joint. Two types of asphaltic oil-latex seal were included for comparative study. Type No. 1 contained the regular commercial grade of rubber latex, and type No. 2 contained a vulcanized latex known as Vultex, (figure 38).

ASPHALT-LATEX EXPANSION JOINT, Type 3. Several installations were made employing asphalt latex as a seal material at top, bottom and sides of the expansion joint. The joint was designed in such a manner as to provide a combination air and escape chamber throughout the central portion of the joint. The chamber provides a space for excess seal material caused by movement of the slabs. The joint was developed by the Michigan State Highway Department, and is illustrated in figure 39.

PREMOLDED RUBBER, Type 4. In connection with the construction of the stress curing section, the expansion joints were designed to use a

Fig. 35B. Adjusting Air Cells to Test Specimen

premolded rubber expansion joint filler, (figure 40). In addition, the bottom inch of the joint was sealed with asphalt latex sealing compound. The joint is illustrated in figure 41.

RAI-SEAL, Type 5. Rai-Seal is a hot poured type rubber compound material, furnished in block form which upon heating to 450° F. transforms to a liquid which can be easily handled and poured into the prepared joints (figure 42).

CONTRACTION JOINT FILLER. The majority of the contraction joints were sealed with the regular standard $\frac{1}{4}$ inch by $2\frac{1}{2}$ inch premolded bituminous strip. Several of the contraction joints were constructed with the $2\frac{1}{2}$ inch groove in which asphaltic oil-latex material was poured to seal the joint.

Periodic observations will be made to determine the effectiveness of the various types of seals.

On account of the unusual heavy equipment used on the design project, it was essential that the sandy subgrade should be firmly tamped under the forms. In order to accomplish this purpose a mechanical tamper was employed on the design project.

MECHANICAL TAMPING OF FORMS. A mechanical form tamper was specified for use on the design project for comparative study of mechanical versus hand methods of tamping forms on sandy subgrades. In conjunction with the tamping of the subgrade under the forms the tamper applied a coating of oil to the inside surface of the forms as it moved along them (figure 43).

In Part II, this report has summarized the various details of the design section of the Michigan Test Road. The durability phase of the Test Road will be described in Part III.

Fig. 37A. View of Mechanical Concrete Spreader

Fig. 37B. View of Mechanical Concrete Spreader

Fig. 38. Sealing Joint with Asphaltic Oil-Latex Material

FIG. 39. DETAIL SKETCH OF ASPHALT LATEX EXPANSION JOINT

SECTION SHOWING JOINT FILLER IN PLACE.

SECTION SHOWING FACE PLATES IN PLACE.

NOTE: - Face Plates shall be placed with the Expansion Joint Forms and remain in place until Stress Curing is completed. Four strips, not less than 24 gage thick, shall be used per joint. All Pressure Cells furnished longer than the required minimum length shall have their extended portion covered by Cell Guards. If more than one Cell Guard is required, place a wood strip cut to size, on each side between the Pressure Cell and Cell Guards.

- FIG. 40. PREMOLDED RUBBER EXPANSION JOINT FILLER IN PLACE
- FIG. 42. SEALING JOINT WITH RAI-SEAL
- FIG. 43. MECHANICAL FORM TAMPER

FIG. 44. VIBRATING CONCRETE AT FORMS AND JOINTS

PART III

THE DURABILITY PROJECT

In preliminary survey study of all concrete pavements in Michigan shows that approximately 10 percent of the surface is scaled in varying degrees. This condition has become more apparent as the use of chemical salts has increased for the removal of ice from pavements. However, the use of concrete for pavements during the last thirty years has indicated its many desirable properties as paving material. At the present time, scaling has not become a serious problem leading to definite failures. Scaling has been common in most parts of the state, but on a whole the concrete is predominantly good. But, even so, the unsightliness of scaled areas and subsequent maintenance and the added possibility of further deterioration is of immediate concern to the highway engineer.

The performance of concrete under the severity of service cannot be predicated upon laboratory studies. Although laboratory studies will aid in the discovery of factors affecting the deterioration and scaling of concrete pavements, the combined physical, chemical and mechanical action as experienced in actual use cannot be predicted.

In order to make observations under service conditions on controlled factors which have been determined to be of importance in the durability of concrete, a portion of the Michigan Test Road was constructed to this end. The purpose in constructing this section was not only to make observations under service conditions, but to afford a field laboratory to obtain accelerated action of chloride salts or ice on concrete pavements and the study of resultant action.

The durability project includes an evaluation of the effect of variation of factors relative to the construction and materials used in concrete pavements. Embodied in these considerations are; the proportioning and grading of aggregates with definite recognition of the material passing 200 mesh; the comparative effect of various types of additives including physical and chemical varieties as well as cement blends and cements produced with grinding aids. Consideration has been given to crushed limestone aggregates with special attention to the finer fractions. The effect of various curing methods is being studied including the use of asphaltic curing agents. In connection with the study of these phases of the problem, it was necessary to obtain certain pertinent incidental data on construction for proper evaluation of each variable factor. Also, it was necessary, in order to obtain guick and reliable information regarding the value of these means in controlling scaling, to set up a special scaling study for this purpose.

In planning the durability project an effort was made in all phases of the work to have only one factor varied at a time. In order to do this the project was divided into a number of test areas, in the manner of the design project. Each test area is designated as a series. A series has been further divided into divisions and sections appropriately marked with letters and numerals respectively. On the durability project there are eight series, each series being devoted to a study of one particular durability factor. A description of the various test areas will be found in table II, entitled "Summary of Test Areas on Durability Project". In addition to table II, a "Schematic Diagram of the Durability Project" has been prepared to further illustrate the various test areas with respect to the entire durability project. This diagram is presented in figure 45.

In the construction of the durability project, no special consideration was given to the design or construction features of the project, except only in those cases expressly mentioned in the description of the durability project. All work was done in accordance with Michigan State Highway Department standard practice. The expansion joints throughout the durability project were constructed 1 inch wide and spaced 120 feet apart in accordance with the standard practice of the Michigan State Highway Department. In series 7D and 7E of the durability project, all contraction and dummy joints were omitted and the expansion joints were spaced at 90, 120, 360 and 600 foot intervals to be studied in conjunction with the design project as explained in "Summary of Durability Project", table II. The Translode Angle-Unit with continuous base was used as load transfer device at expansion joints throughout the durability project. The joint filler consisted of 1 inch Flexcell fiber filler sealed with asphalt joint seal material SOA.

The contraction joints were constructed in accordance with standard practice, consisting of $\frac{3}{4}$ inch by 15 inch dowel bars, spaced 15 inches center to center, and held in place by an approved installing device. This is the same type of contraction joint as used on the design project and illustrated in figures 13 and 14 under design project, part II.

The "dummy" plane of weakness joints were constructed in accordance with standard practice.

Steel reinforcement was used throughout the durability project in accordance with standard practice.

Prior to the construction of the durability project of the Michigan Test Road, it was necessary to make preliminary studies of proper proportioning and grading of aggregates to comply with the characteristic requirements of each material added. In the final concrete mixtures used in the test sections of the durability project, natural fine sand and mineral fillers were incorporated in the mixture to improve the grading.

PROPORTIONING AND GRADING OF AGGREGATES

Poorly graded aggregates are inducive to poor workability, segregation, difficult finishing, bleeding and laitance. These properties are contributory in a certain degree to inferior concrete with subsequent scaling and disintegration of the surface of pavements.

Mix designs used on the Michigan Test Road included the regular proportioning as provided for in the Michigan State Highway Department material specifications and determined by the mortar void design method. The standard design method was supplemented by incorporating fines with the fine aggregates. These fines were added to increase the density and workability of the mix and a possible resultant reduction of scaling. The fines included natural sand and mineral fillers.

MODIFIED SAND. In this connection, one phase of the durability study was to design a practical and economical dense concrete mix that would show improvement in resistance to scaling. In the grading of the sand and coarse aggregate, it was attempted to approach an ideal gradation and still be conservative as to cost. A study of the general characteristics of available concrete aggregates meeting Michigan State Highway Department 1940 specifications, showed that it was desirable to improve the gradation of the fine aggregate 2NS, particularly the material passing the No. 50, 100 and 200 sieves. Consequently, in series 7E of the durability project, 175 pounds of special fine sand, obtained from a local natural deposit, was blended with one cubic yard of concrete. The grading of the respective materials is given in appendix II, tables 8 and 9. The combined mixture of fine aggregates is designated as Modified Sand 2NS.

MINERAL FILLERS. Another phase of the study of grading improvement, series 7A, 7C and 8A, included two types of mineral fillers which were added to the concrete to provide additional fines. These materials were silica dust and limestone dust meeting Michigan State Highway Department gradation requirements for Mineral Filler 3MF. See appendix II, table 10.

The mineral filler was added to each batch in the amount of 85 pounds per cubic yard of concrete. The quantity of mineral filler to be added to the concrete mixture was determined from laboratory analysis, taking into consideration the amount of fines in the fine aggregate, the fineness of the Portland cement and the gradation of the mineral filler.

The natural sand and mineral filler admixtures are inert and act wholly as a physical addition to produce a workable and anticipated durable concrete. To obtain the same end, concrete mixes were designed incorporating chemical additives.

EVALUATION OF ADDITIVES IN CONCRETE MIXTURES

Incidental to the construction of the durability project, a preliminary laboratory investigation was necessary in order to evaluate the various additives for the purpose of determining the most beneficial materials and the affect these additives would have upon the design and physical characteristics of their respective concrete mixtures.

The proprietary additives selected for use on the durability project were of the powder and liquid types which included Pozzolith, Plastiment, Orvus, Vinsol Resin and Calcium Chloride. A blend of natural cement was also included which was ground with and without the use of calcium stearate.

A STANDARD CONSTRUCTION - BURLAP Gravel-Sond, Cement content 1375, Brond No	FINISH - WET STRAW GURIN 1. Administure none. Lengt	6. 1- 1200 (1.	IA 18 Gravel -	BROOM FINISH Sond, Sement content 137	- WET STRAW CURING. 5, Brand No.1, Admisture none. 1	Longth 1200 ft.	ID 2A	BROCH FINI , Grovel - Sand - Cement :	SH - ASPHALT content 1375, Brand N 91	ENULSION
										A-1078
CURING . 2A 3A BURL Administure none. Length 12001. Administure for the execution Gravel	AP i FINISH — CURI Law Finish Sang, Camani contant 1375,	Srend No.4. Administers' none.	tength 1080/1.	SA 44 Bravel-Sand,	BURLAP FIRISH-WET STRAY Comman content 1375, Brand Mo.1,	9 GURLING . , Administers nons. Langth 10791	4A	4B POZZOLITE Grovel - Sond , Gement	4 - BURLAP FIN content 1.375, Brand Ro	25M -
WET STRAW CURING. 48	40	URLAP FINISK - WET ST	RAW GURING.	40	40 PLASTIMENT - 800	AND THE REPART OF THE REPART O	W GURING.	math 1220 (1	4D 4E	BURLAP
rezzenn aemunie, ceopa ign ign	570MD + 3684,	General Content, 1.578 acta	5 112 7, ADMANUTE 1998.	1						
FINISH - WET STRAW GURING. Cament contain 1275, Brand No.1, Administra none. Length	4E.	4F Grand-Sond, Ca	ORYUS-BURLAP FINIS maal Content 1376, Brand Na	BH - WET STRAW CURD LI, Grup Admisfure. Lo	tG, 4F mglh 1200fi.	40 Branel - Sand, Cemen	BURLAP FINISH Content 1375, Br	-WET STRAW CURING. and No. F Administers form.	Length 1200/L	40
				0.00.10.5			1	10.00		<u></u>
4N DRVDS - BURLAP YINGH - YE Gravel -Sand, Gement content 1375 Brand He.2	2, Oryun Adminiure. Length U	48 <i>h</i> ,	49 Grandi-Sar	donump pr sd - Camani conlant 1375, Bi	rand Ho.2 , Administra rono. Longi?	9.1 1220 ft.	54	Groubl - Sand, Cement content.	1375, Brend Re.I.	
BUR	AP FINISH - WET STRA	* CURING.		5A 58		SURLAP FINISH- WET STRAW C	VRING.	58 50		
Vinist Raain A	dminiurs. Length 2	4a2 ft.			Gravel-Send, Gement content 1.572	5, Brond No.1 Administere name. 1	Lingih H35ft.			
VINSOL RESSR - BURLAP FINISH Grovpl-Bond, Gemeni content 1,375, Broad No. 2, Vinto	***** ***** * WET STRAW CURING. # Resin Administure, Length	2458 11.			50 50 Orevel-Send, Or	BURLAP FINISH - WE ament content 1.375. Brond No.2,	T STRAW CURING Administers roas.	i. Lenoth 1222 fl.	50 6A G	NATURAL ravet-Sondy
8/93 J+089		i la comuna			CARTIL CHONE					
DEBERT - HO ISKNO AS- BORLAP PArist - WEI STRAM Bland-I sock of Notural Camera, no grinding wid, to 5 stocks at Langth 11551	r UUMING. I Portjand Gement, Brand Na.1.	BA. 68 WEI STRAW COAR Brovet-	and, Coment content (37)	5 Brond No.1. Admisiure me	na. Lengik. 176 ft.	Gravel - Sand, Bland - 1 set	t of Natural Camen	t, srind ald addad, to Sam Langth 1170 ff.	ske of Poriland Gamen	t. Grand No. 1.
26 CUT-BACK ASPHALT CURRING	TER TO FORE	EDGE TO EDGE L	HSH 2B NGTABLINAL 7A		SILICA OUST - SURLAP FI	RISH - WET EARTH GURING.	X1014 9-194	WET	STRAW CURING	
Langth Sto ft.		Langth 750 ft.		0.05	el - sano, cement content La/S, i	Urana. Ke.1, Stille UP41, ADMIABLE	Lang	111 (2345 II.		
7A 78	EURLAP FINISH Gravel-Sand, Cemeri content	- WET STRAW GURING. 1375, Brand Ro.I. Admisture	none. 1.enyth. (219 PL	78 YG	Graze	LIMESTONE DUST - BI i-Sond, Gameni contant, 1,375,	MLAP FINISH - Brond No.1. Lime	WET STRAW CURING.	.a.eb Langih 2371 (L	
		85	PS	<u> </u>		•	•			. <u> </u>
	70 70 STAN B STOYE	AND DESIGN STUDY - R -Sand, Cement content L37 13 at	JALAP FINISH. WET S Brand No.3. Administra no G U	TRAW CURING. nna. Length (243 fl.	70 78	τ.		\$rø:	NODIFIED SAND - tet - Sond,	
BURLAP FINISH - WET STAAW CURING. Gammai contani 1375, Urond Naj, Admixture none. L	angth 2410 fl.		7E 7F STAR	RS DARD SESIEN SYDOY - Sand, Comuni conteni 128 at	RS BURLAP FINISH - WET SFF 1375 Grand Nat Admintore none.	RS CURING. Longia 1434 (L.	• •	75	STATE HIGHW	CHIGAN /AY DEPARTMEN]
A HISATONE AND THESTONE DUST - DIDI AD EIN		9.6 an	T	ABGREAATE - BUP AP	FINSN - WET STRAW CHOIDA	- 1 Sith Movem Molthus Gel	.EGEND		STATE RIGHT MICHIGAN GONCRETE DI	TEST ROAD
Stanty - Sund - Gament content 1.375, Brand No.I. Lime	vione Bust Admistere 3	angih 1084 It. Stone	- Stone Sond , Camen	i content 1375 Stored No	o,1. Admintare none, Length iG	254 ft. ¥ Division I A to D additional dasign	end (2A to E in t studies incorporate	Series 7 designate Iš in Durdbildy Saction,	RESEARC PROJECT IS-2003 LONDON N-113 LENDIA-T/YAILES CONSTRUCTO 1940	H GIVISION, REFEARCH PROJECT & SOLLE I - 100 FEET DATE 2-5-41 DEACH BY RWS.

FIG. 45. SCHEMATIC DIAGRAM OF DURABILITY SECTION

Using the mortar-void principle of concrete mix design, various quantities of sand, cement, water and additives were combined in varying amounts to determine the most desirable mortar from the standpoint of density and consequently the most desirable amount of admixture to use. In all cases, the quantity of sand and cement were kept constant in accordance with standard practice but the quantity of admixture varied. The liquid admixtures were added to the predesigned mortars in varying amounts to determine the most desirable quantities to use from the standpoint of physical characteristics of the mortar and concrete such as workability, density and durability.

The additives used for study in the test road are described as follows:

POZZOLITH. Pozzolith is a patented plasticizing agent containing ferric alumina silicate and other ingredients. Two pounds of Pozzolith per sack of cement were added to the dry batch at the mixer as recommended by the manufacturer. Pozzolith was used in series 4B of the durability project.

PLASTIMENT. Plastiment is another type of plasticizing agent in which an organic oxy-acid is the active agent. This organic oxy-acid is incorporated with an inert filler to insure even distribution of the acid throughout the concrete. Plastiment was added to the dry batch at the mixer in the amount of one pound per sack of cement as recommended by the manufacturer and was used in series 4D of the durability project.

ORVUS, W. A. PASTE. Orvus is a patented wetting agent manufactured for industrial use. It is a sulphated fatty alcohol containing sodium lauryl sulfate as the active ingredient. Orvus may be obtained in flake or paste form. Sufficient Orvus was added to the mix to produce a drop in weight of 4 to 6 pounds per cubic foot of concrete of a specified consistency and cement content as compared with concrete of the same consistency and cement content without the addition of Orvus. Since this requirement will vary in accordance with materials used, the approximate quantity of Orvus will be between 0.02 and 0.10 pound per barrel of cement. It was found that for the particular materials used on this project that 0.06 pound of Orvus per barrel of cement gave a reduction in weight of approximately 5 pounds per cubic foot.

The Orvus paste was dissolved in water to form a solution of known concentration. The required amount of the solution per batch of concrete was added to the dry materials at the skip. Orvus was used in series 4F and 4H of the durability project.

VINSOL RESIN PORTLAND CEMENT. This cement consists of standard Portland cement ground with Vinsol Resin. Vinsol Resin is an im-

TABLE II.

SUMMARY OF TEST AREAS ON DURABILITY PROJECTS

								<u>,</u>		
		STAT	ION							Nomencla-
Series	Di- vision	Beginning	End	Longth	Finish	Curing	Type of Standard Portland Cement	Admixture	b/b.	ture Section Markers
1	AR	358+50 370±50	370+50 382 - 50	1200/	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None	0.76	1A 14/10
		000 / 50	001 - 50	1000	Divon	And Fundalise	Draini No. 1	140110	0,10	14/19
2	A	36Z+00	334+00.	1200	Broom	Aspa. Emuision	Brand No. 1	None	0,76	18/2A
3	A-1	394+50	395+70	120′	Burlap	Asph. Emulsion	Brand No. 1	Nana	0.76	24/34
	A-2	395+70	396+90	1201	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1	None	0.76	
	A-9	920 + 90	929 + IA	120	Burtap	curing	Brand No. 1	None	0.76	
	A-4 A-5	398+10 399+30	399+30 400+50	120 [,] 120 [,]	Burlap Burlap	Wetted Earth Ponding	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None None	0.76	
	A-6 A-7	400+50 401+70	401+70	120 ⁷ 120 ⁷	Burlan	Double Burlap	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None	0.76	
	A-8	402+90	404+10	120	Burlap	2% CaCl, Ad-	Durand May 1	News	0.70	
	A-9	404+10	405+30	120 [,]	Burlap	Ritecure	Brand No. 1	None	0.76	. -
4	A	405+30	412+50	720 [,]	Burlap	Wotted Earth	Brand No. 1	None	0.76	3A/4A
	A-1 A	412+50 413+70	413+70 416+09	120 ⁷ 2397	Burlap Burlap	2% CaCl ₂ Admix. Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None None	0.76	4A-1
	B	416+09	422+07	598	Burlep	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1	Pezzolith	0.76	4A/4B
	C	428+80	440+10	1130	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1	None	0.80	4B/4C
	D	440+10 446+10	446+10 452+10	- 600 [,]	Burlap Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	Plastiment Plastiment	0.76	4C/4D
	E	452 + 10 464 + 10	464 + 10 466 ± 50	12001	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None	0.76	4D/4E
	F-1	466+50	467 + 70	120	Burlap	1% CaCl ₂ Admix.	Brand No. 1	Orvus	0.76	4F-1
	F	401+10 470+28	470+28 476+10	258' 582'	Burlap Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	Orvas Orvas	0.76	
	G H	476+10 488+10	488+10 494+10	1200 [,] 600 [,]	Burlep Burleo	Wetted Straw Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 2	None Orvus	0.76	4F/4G 4G/4H
	H	494 + 10 499 ± 55	499+55 511+83	545 ⁷	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 2 Brand No. 2	Orvus	0.80	
, F		E11 : 09	571 . AF	1003	Dusian	Metted Straw	Brand No. 1	Mineri Desin	0.10	41/54
	Å	531+45	532+50	105	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1	"Vinsel Resin	0.80	41/0A
	A-1 A	532+50 633+70	533+79 536+65	120 ⁷ 295 ⁷	Burlap Burlap	1% CaCl ₂ Admix. Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	² Vinsol Resin ² Vinsol Resin	0.80	5A-1
	BC	536+65 548+00	548+00 566+09	1135 [,] 1809 [,]	Burlap Burlan	Wetted Straw Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 2	None ² Vinsol Besin	0.76	5A/5B 5B/5C
	C	566+09 572+58	572+58 584+80	649 ⁴	Burlap	Wetted Straw Wetted Straw	Brand No. 2 Brand No. 2	Vinsol Resin	0.80	5C /5D
e		594 : 90	501 - 75	EOE	Dustan	Malled Circu	Brand No. 1	Netto	6.10. 0.70	50/04
•	Å	590+75	596+35	560'	Burlap	Wetted Straw	blanded nat.	in nat. cem.	0.80	9D/6A
	B	596+35	599+15	280′	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1	None	0.76	6A/6B
	8 C	699+15 608+10	608+10 614+00	895 [,] 590,	Burlap Burlan	Wetted Earth Wetted Earth	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None ² Beef tallow	0.76	6B/6C
	C	614+00	619+80	580'	Burlap	Wetted Earth	blended nat.	in natural comont	0.80	/
,	R	610 1 98	624 : 65	518/	Dream	Out back Acab	Drand No. 1	Neve	0.7¢	CO /00
-	18-1	624+90	632+40	750 [,]	Broom	Wetted Earth	Brand No. 1	None	0.76	2B/1B-1
7	A	632+40	644+10	1170 [,]	Burlap	Wetted Earth	Brand No. 1	Silica Dust	0.76	1B-1/7A
	A	644.+10 645.+58	645+58 655+85	148 [,] 1027 [,]	Burlap Burlap	Wetted Earth Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	Silica Dust Silica Dust	0.80 0.80	
	BC	655 + 85 668 + 04	668+04 680±06	1219 [/] 1202 [/]	Burlap Burlan	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None Limectone Duct	0.76	7A/7B 78/7C
	C *D 114	680+06	691 + 75	1169	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1	Limestone Dust	0.80	70 /70
	- 11A	031+10	03C+10	30'	enusb	Wetten Straw	Drano no, i	Nõda	9,10	7C/11A
	D-11A D-11B	692+10 693+00	693+00 694+20	90′ 120′	Burlap Burlap	Wetted Straw Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None None	0.76 0.76	11A/11B
	D-R.S. D-11C	694+20 694+30	694+30 697+92	10 ⁴ 362 ⁷	Burlap Burlan	Wetted Straw Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None None	0.76 0.76	118/110
	D-R.S.	697+92 598 00	698+00 704 00	8/ 600-	Burlap	Wotted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand Mo. 1	None	0.76	110/110
	D-R.S.	704+00	704+00 704+18	18	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1	None	0.76	110/110
	E.	/041+18	721 + 76	1767'	Buriap	welled Straw	Brand No. 1	Modified Sand	0.76	11D/7E 7D/7E
	E	721 + 75	728÷10	635′	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1	Modified Sand	0.80	
	F-12A	728+10	728+28	18'	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1	Modified Sand	0.80	7E/7F 7E/12A
	F-12A F-129	728+28 729±00	729+00	72	Buriap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None	0.76	19A /10B
	F-R.S.	730+20	730+30	10/	Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1	None	0.76	100 (100
	F-R.S.	730+30 733+90	153+90 734+00	360' 10'	Burlap Burlap	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None None	U./6 0.76	128/120
	F-12D F-R.S.	734+00 736+42	736+42 736+52	242 [,] 10 [,]	Burlap Burlao	Wetted Straw Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None None	0.76 0.76	12C/12D
	F-12E F-R.S.	736+52 742+59	742+52 742-169	600 ⁷	Burlep	Wetted Straw	Brand No. 1 Brand No. 1	None Limestere Duct	0,76	12D/12E
ę	A	1767 (00	729 . 40	39 [°]	10	Wallad Cas	Brand Ma	-mostene DuSt	8 70	102 /04
•	м 	146+02	105+40	1464	euriáp	TREFFE SULAR	Grand Rio, I	-unestone Dust	9.10	TF/8A
	ដ	163+46 764+00	764+09	1054'	Burlap	welled Straw	Brand No. 1	None	0.76	8A/8B 8B/S

NOTES: "Initial ouring pertains to damp buriap placed on concrete after finishing and removed following morning prior to final ouring operations. *As grinding aid. *One sack of natural coment was substituted for one sack of Pertiand coment per 6-bag batch.

*Limestone line and coarse aggregates.

R.S.-Expansion relief section.

*Divisions D-11A to D-11D and F-12A to F-12E in Series 7 designate additional design studies incorporated in durability project because of insufficient space on design project. See Table 1 for details.

July 1941

ĺ.

 $\{\cdot\}$

pure abietic acid in fine powder form. When the acid comes in contact with Portland cement and water it forms a calcium salt of abietic acid which has the characteristic properties of soap, and, as such, favors the entrainment of air during the mixing of the concrete. The Vinsol Resin Portland cement must confrom to the requirements of the current specifications for Portland cement A.S.T.M. Designation C9 with the following exceptions and additions: The cement shall be ground with 0.15 pound (± 20 percent) of pulverized Vinsol Resin per barrel, which shall be uniformly added to the clinker at time of grinding. The specific surface as determined in accordance with A.S.T.M. C 115-38T shall not be less than 1750 nor more than 2100 square centimeters per gram. The Vinsol Resin requirements are given in appendix II, table 11. Two brands of Portland cement were used on the durability project. The two brands of Vinsol Resin Portland cement were milled of the same clinker used in the manufacture of the standard Portland cement used in the durability project. Specifications required the manufacturers of these cements to furnish acceptable evidence that they had had previous experience in the production of Vinsol Resin Portland cement in quantity and that the standard and special cements to be furnished would be uniform in quality, fineness and chemical composition.

NATURAL CEMENTS. Two types of natural cements were used on the durability project. One type manufactured without grinding aid was used in series 6A, the other type in which grinding aid was employed was included in series 6C. Both natural cements were of the same brand and furnished in sacks containing 75 pounds each, net.

The natural cement without grinding aid was manufactured in accordance with Standard Specification for Natural Cement, A.S.T.M. Designation C 10-37.

The natural cement with grinding aid was manufactured under the same requirements except beef tallow was used as a grinding aid. No requirements were placed upon the grinding aid itself because the natural cement with grinding aid has been a standard product with the manufacturers.

The Portland natural cement blend was made on the basis of a six sack batch comprising one sack (75 pounds) of natural cement and five sacks of Portland cement. The cement content, including both Portland and natural cement was 5.5 sacks (1.375 barrels) per cubic yard of concrete as specified for the entire project.

CALCIUM CHLORIDE ADMIXTURE. Calcium chloride was added to the concrete mixtures in series 4A, 4F and 5A for a distance of 120 feet. The purpose of adding calcium chloride was primarily to determine its effect as a curing agent, However, a study was made of its effect upon the physical characteristics of regular concrete and of concrete containing such additives as Plastiment, Orvus, and Vinsol Resin. The calcium chloride in flake form was added to the dry batch at the mixer skip in the amounts shown in the "Schematic Diagram of Durability Project", figure 45.

In addition to the studies on aggregates and additives previously described, a portion of the durability project has been set aside for the study of limestone aggregates with and without added fines.

LIMESTONE AGGREGATES

The use of manufactured limestone sand as a fine aggregate in concrete construction has been in disfavor not only in Michigan, but also in some other states where this material is available. The main objections to its use in concrete is reduced workability, excessive bleeding, difficult finishing and its tendency to excessive scaling of pavement surfaces in which it is used.

On the durability project of the Michigan Test Road there were included two test areas comprised entirely of crushed stone aggregates. These two test areas were constructed for the express purpose of studying the stone sand problem under controlled conditions.

One test area, section 8A, is 1084 feet in length and contains limestone coarse aggregate and stone sand with limestone dust admixture added as a possible method to improve the characteristics of the mixtures. The limestone dust mineral filler was added to the concrete mixture at the rate of 85 pounds per cubic yard of concrete.

For comparative study a second test area, section 8B, 1054 feet in length was established adjacent to test section area 8A and contains a standard limestone aggregate mixture with stone sand but no limestone dust added. Both sections were constructed and cured under similar conditions.

The limestone aggregates and limestone dust mineral filler conformed to Michigan State Highway Department requirements for coarse aggregates 4A, 10A, stone sand 2SS, and mineral filler 3MF, respectively. The grading of the various materials is shown in appendix II, table 12.

During the construction of the limestone test areas, visual observations were made of the concrete mixture including its characteristics and appearance during mixing, placing and finishing operations.

The formation of laitance on the surface of concrete pavements during construction is considered as being one of the factors contributing to scaling. Methods to prevent the formation of laitance such as proper grading of aggregates and by the use of additives have been included for study in the durability project. Another method to overcome the effect of laitance is to remove it from the surface of the fresh concrete by means of special brooms. The use of brooms for final finishing of concrete pavements introduces other factors which affect the characteristics of the finished concrete. In order to obtain more information concerning brooming of concrete surfaces, a test area of the durability project has been provided for a comparative study of finishing methods.

FINISHING STUDIES

The brooming of concrete surfaces with stiff brooms as a final finishing operation has been used by some highway engineers to reduce the amount of fine superficial material. However, some engineers have contended that this method provided grooves for concentration of salt solutions and a resultant unsatisfactory condition of aggravated scaling. Therefore, it was felt that a comparative study should be made between burlap finish and brooming to obtain comparative data relative to the two methods.

Brooming was included on certain sections of bituminous curing, since in the past, this method of curing provided a rather slippery pavement for some time after construction and, it was hoped that a trial section of brooming would show how to overcome this difficulty if bituminous curing were allowed in standard specifications.

Therefore, in series 1A and 1B, 2A and 2B of the durability project, a comparative study is being made of burlap finish versus broom finishing, both with and without wetted straw and bituminous membrane curing. Special consideration will be given to such factors as, scaling of the surface, ice formation, ice removal and skidding properties.

BURLAP FINISHING VERSUS BROOMING, STANDARD CURING. The burlap finish method consists of dragging a strip of damp burlap longitudinally over the full width of the pavement at a time when the excess moisture has disappeared and while it is still possible to produce a uniform surface of gritty texture.

Brooming operations, as illustrated in figure 46, were performed during a period after belting when the excess water and laitance had arisen to the surface, and before the concrete had reached a condition such that it would not be unduly roughened or torn. The brooms were of an approved push broom type not less than 18 inches in width and constructed of bass or bassine fibre not more than 5 inches long. Each brush was equipped with a handle at least one foot longer than one-half the width of the pavement slab. It was required that the brooms be washed and dried at frequent intervals and that a sufficient number of brooms be provided to permit interchanging.

Fig. 46. Views of Brooming Operations

The brooms were drawn across the surface from the center line to each edge with not more than one stroke per width of broom. Each stroke slightly overlapped the adjacent stroke. The brooming operation produced corrugations in the surface of the pavement, uniform in appearance and not more than $\frac{1}{8}$ inch in depth.

The curing method consisted of 24 hours wet burlap followed by 6 days of wetted straw.

BURLAP FINISHING VERSUS BROOMING WITH BITUMINOUS CURING. Immediately after completion of burlap finishing or brooming operations as previously described, a coat of asphalt emulsion was applied to the finished surface at the rate of not less than 1/15 gallon per square yard. The type of emulsion and method of application is described fully under Curing Studies.

Studies of this subject will give special consideration to such factors as, the relative skidding properties of each surface with bituminous treatment both dry and wet, effect of bituminous treatment in curing and scaling, effect of bituminous treatment on ice formation and ice removal. Also, a comparative study will be made of bituminous emulsion versus cut-back asphalt as a curing agent, as well as other types of curing.

CONCRETE CURING STUDY

In general, it is the theory that the function of curing is to keep the concrete from drying out until the maximum proportions of the total water originally used in the mixture have combined with the cement. To produce this condition several different types of curing methods have been employed for this purpose. During the last fifteen years, intensive researches have been conducted by the Public Roads Administration⁷, the Portland Cement Association⁸, and various state highway departments⁹ to determine the relative merit of the various curing methods with respect to strength, temperature, volume change, checking and cracking, surface defects and moisture content during curing period.

The relative merit of the various curing methods have been based, in general, on laboratory strength tests. Very little information is available on the subject of curing methods in relation to durability of concrete. Therefore, a study of curing methods under actual field conditions were included in the durability project. Embodied in the curing study are such factors as moisture movement in the slab, relative thermo insulation value of various curing methods, membrane curing versus wetted coverings and relative durability of the slab surface.

Series 3, of the durability project, was set up for the curing study. The various curing methods studied are asphalt emulsion, cut-back asphalt, wetted straw, paper curing with and without initial cur-

(7), (8) and (9) — See Appendix IV.)

ing, wetted earth, ponding, double burlap, calcium chloride integral mixed, and a transparent membrane called Rite-Cure. The various curing methods are illustrated in figure 47. A slab 120 feet in length was devoted to each type of curing. In order to study temperature and moisture conditions a unit consisting of three moisture cells and three thermocouples were installed in the center of each 120 foot test area as illustrated in figure 28. Readings were taken at six hour intervals throughout the entire curing period of seven days. A moisture and temperature reading was obtained at the top, center and bottom of the slab for the purpose of studying moisture movement and temperature under various curing methods and climatic conditions.

Further studies pertaining to the desirability of the differently cured concrete surfaces were carried on in conjunction with the incidental scaling study conducted during the winter of 1940 and described under Subsequent Studies, part IV.

In most cases curing may be divided into two phases, specifically initial curing and final curing. Initial curing which is referred to frequently in the discussion of curing methods is described as follows: After finishing operations and when the surface has hardened sufficiently to prevent marring, strips of burlap are laid on the surface to overlap not less than 3 inches and shall be kept thoroughly wet until removed. The burlap must remain at least 6 hours after concrete is placed but not later than 10 a.m. on the day following the placing of the concrete. Upon removal of the burlap, the surface is thoroughly wetted and the regular curing method applied. On the durability project initial curing was used in connection with the curing described below with the exceptions noted.

ASPHALT EMULSION CURING. Test area series 3A consists of initial curing with wet burlap followed by an application of asphalt emulsion AE-1A. Immediately after finishing operation, wet burlap was applied, after which the burlap was removed and the surface coated and sealed with a uniform layer of asphalt emulsion. The emulsion was applied at the rate of not less than 1/20 gallon per square yard by means of a suitable pressure outfit. It was applied as illustrated in figure 47 in a fine spray from a nozzle adapted for this particular work. The characteristics of the asphalt emulsion are given in appendix II, table 13.

CUT-BACK ASPHALT CURING. In connection with the study of brooming versus burlap finishing with and without bituminous curing, previously discussed under "Finishing Studies", cut-back asphalt was included for comparative study with asphalt emulsion as a curing agent in series 2B. The cut-back asphalt was applied immediately after finishing operations in the same manner as for the asphalt emulsion except the rate of application was not less than 1/15 gallon per square yard. The application of cut-back asphalt

on a concrete surface immediately after finishing is a patented method. The characteristics of the cut-back asphalt is described in table 14, appendix II.

WETTED STRAW. The wetted straw method used in series 3B consists of spreading hay or straw over the entire surface immediately upon removal of the burlap at the end of the initial curing period. The hay or straw is applied at the rate of not less than 4 pounds per square yard. The material is thoroughly wetted as soon as placed and kept saturated for 6 days.

PAPER CURING WITH AND WITHOUT INITIAL CURING. In series 3C, the concrete received an initial curing of wet burlap. After the burlap was removed, the surface was wetted and immediately covered with an impermeable paper covering for final cure. The paper blankets were composed of an approved moisture-proof paper of sufficient strength and thoroughness to permit handling without becoming unfit to provide a sealed covering during the entire curing section. The paper blankets were of sufficient width to cover the top and edges of the slab to within 2 inches of the bottom with adequate provision for shrinkage.

In series 3G, the paper was applied to the surface immediately after finishing operations omitting the initial curing period with wet burlap. The paper and method of application was the same as for series 3C.

WETTED EARTH. The wetted earth method as used in series 3D consisted of covering the entire surface of the pavement with earth to a minimum depth of 2 inches after the initial curing period. The earth covering was thoroughly wetted after it was placed and kept saturated for a period of 6 days.

PONDING. After initial curing in series 3E, the entire surface of the pavement was flooded with water which was held in place by a system of transverse and longitudinal dykes of earth. The surface was completely submerged for a period of 6 days.

DOUBLE BURLAP. After initial curing, an additional layer of burlap was added to the surface in series 3F and the double layer of burlap was kept saturated for a period of 6 days.

CALCIUM CHLORIDE INTEGRAL MIXED. In series 3H, the calcium chloride in flake form was added to the dry materials in the skip at the rate of 2 pounds of calcium chloride per sack of cement. Immediately after finishing, the concrete was covered with a single thickness of wet burlap. No subsequent curing treatment was applied to the surface after removal of burlap the following morning.

TRANSPARENT MEMBRANE — RITE-CURE. In series 31, immediately after finishing operations, Rite-Cure a patented transparent membrane curing agent was applied to the surface of the pavement by the method described for asphalt emulsion except that the rate of application was 1/20 gallon per square yard.

In conjunction with the five durability studies including grading, and proportioning of aggregates, the evaluation of additives, limestone aggregates, finishing studies and concrete curing studies, it was necessary to make special observations. These observations are described under incidental studies.

INCIDENTAL STUDIES

The incidental studies were essentially a visual and physical evaluation of the physical characteristics of the various concrete mixtures.

PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS

The following factors were considered with respect to each concrete mixture.

SUBGRADE CONDITION, including surface grade, soil type and condition of compaction.

GENERAL APPEARANCE OF CONCRETE, such as consistency of mixture and workability when deposited on the subgrade, when manipulated by workmen and when struck off by the finishing machine.

WORKABILITY of the various concrete mixtures containing admixtures as compared with standard concrete mixtures.

SEGREGATION, the ability of the various concrete mixtures to resist segregation of the coarse from fine aggregates.

CONSISTENCY of concrete mixtures as determined by the slump cone method.

BLEEDING. The free water appearing upon the surface was noted as to time of appearance, duration, apparent quantity and amount of fines remaining on the surface of the concrete.

FINISHING. Particular attention was paid to the number of passes of the finishing machine, the ease of hand floating and surface appearance of finished concrete. Also, the time interval between mixing and finishing observations were observed as well as the amount of mortar present during this period.

LAITANCE. The various concrete mixtures were carefully watched for the formation of laitance and the location of such areas were recorded by stations.

CURING. General observations were made on curing operations and any irregularities noted.

JOINTS. Irregularities in joint installation and final finishing were recorded by stations, including assembly, alignment, placing of concrete adjacent to joints, finishing and edging, the filling of low areas adjacent to joints with fine mortar and laitance. From time to time the position of dowels were checked after finishing operations.

FORMS. After removal of forms, the condition of the concrete was observed and recorded.

TIME-TEMPERATURE OF PLACING CON-CRETE. Time and temperature readings were taken each time the batch quantities were changed. Also, observations were made during the day at maximum and minimum temperature conditions.

MECHANICAL ANALYSIS OF CONCRETE

To determine the effectiveness of the various admixtures to prevent segregation of the aggregates during placement of the concrete, representative samples were taken from the top, center and bottom of the slab and analysed by Dunagans' "Method for Determining Constitutents of Fresh Concrete"¹⁰.

SETTING TIME OF CONCRETE

At certain locations throughout the durability project, a comparative study was made of setting rates of concrete with and without calcium chloride, particularly in those sections containing it as an admixture. The test procedure consists of a series of time-penetrations and load observations on a one-pound sample of fresh concrete mortar obtained by removing all material retained on a No. 4 sieve. The tests were conducted under similar climatic conditions. The test equipment and procedure were designed and developed by Mr. F. Burggraf. The test equipment is illustrated in figure 48.

CONCRETE TEST SPECIMENS

Concrete test specimens were molded in accordance with current standard practice and cured adjacent to the pavement in the same manner as the structure. See figure 49. For each type of mixture, sufficient 6 by 12 inch cylinders and 6 by 8 by 24 inch beams were prepared for 7 and 28 day compression and flexural tests respectively.

Also, 3 by 6 by 15 inch beams and 4 by 16 inch cylinders were prepared for laboratory freezing and thawing tests and modulus of elasticity determination in relation to durability. This determination being made by the sonic method illustrated in figure 50.

Six inch concrete cores have been obtained from the entire project for further laboratory study relative to durability of concrete.

During the actual service life of the pavement and for a period of 3 to 5 years, it is planned to study or observe certain sections of the project under the action of ice and salts in accelerated manner. This study is discussed in Part IV under Special Scaling Studies.

(10) - See Appendix IV.)

Fig. 49B. Molds for Casting, Freezing and Thawing Specimens and Compression Cylinders

Fig. 48. Burggraf Test Equipment for Measuring Time of Set of Concrete

Fig. 49A. Molding Modulus of Rupture Specimens

Fig. 50. Sonic Apparatus for Determining Modulus of Elasticity of Concrete Test Specimens Upper—Concrete Specimen in Position for Test Lower—Sonic Apparatus .

PART IV

SUBSEQUENT STUDIES

Ine relative value of the various factors studied in the design and durability projects may be prophesied by laboratory tests and observations during construction, but the ultimate conclusions must be determined by observations made under actual service conditions. Therefore, it is planned to make periodic visual examinations together with measurement of physical conditions as discussed in this bulletin. These observations throughout both projects will include continuation of measurements of moisture content, slab temperature, slab movement, joint width, joint elevation, concrete stresses and surface condition surveys. Special consideration will be given to a study of surface scaling due to accelerated weathering tests with calcium chloride and ice.

SUBSEQUENT OBSERVATIONS

A survey of the general condition of the pavement will be made twice a year, spring and fall. In addition to the regular condition survey, general observations will be made by the Research Division personnel during measurement observations. The condition survey will include such factors as the appearance and location of cracking, condition of joints, condition of pavement surface and the occurrence of any irregularities pertinent to the design and durability studies.

PAVEMENT MEASUREMENTS

Measurement observations will be conducted four times a year during the winter (January or February), spring (April or May), summer (July or August) and fall (October or November).

Measurements will be made of daily changes in the width of joints on selected days at each of the four seasons of the year. A set of measurements will be made at various joints selected for studying the permanent changes in joint width.

Elevation measurements at joints will be made one year after construction of pavement and thereafter at two year intervals.

SPECIAL SCALING STUDY

During the actual service life of the pavement and for a period of 3 to 5 years, it is planned to study or observe certain sections of the durability project under the action of ice and salts in an accelerated manner.

The correlation of the observations made during construction and actual service together with the test information of the special scaling study should enable the Michigan State Highway Department Research Division to evaluate the many factors and determine their relative importance under the conditions imposed.

FIG. 51. DYKED AREAS FOR SCALING STUDY

Constructing Dykes

Dyked Area Under Winter Conditions

Dyked Area Showing Escessive Scaling

Dyked Area Showing Slight Scale

FIG. 52. SUBSEQUENT RESULTS OF SCALING STUDY

In conducting the scaling study, definite pavement sections 120 feet in length were chosen with respect to the various concrete mixtures and surface treatments involved in the construction of the pavement. In each section two areas were dyked off, each area being 3 feet wide and 12 feet long. The dyked areas were established along the east edge of the pavement and parallel to it. The dyked areas are illustrated in figures 51 and 52. Safety precautions were maintained day and night to warn traffic of the presence of the test areas and to prevent accidents. Two different types of accelerated test methods were employed. In test area "A", a 10 percent solution of calcium chloride of $\frac{1}{4}$ inch minimum depth was applied and allowed to remain in place 5 days. At the end of this period, the solution was removed, the panel flushed and water applied to a depth of $\frac{1}{4}$ inch. After the water had frozen, it remained in this condition over the week end weather permitting. The ice was melted by an application of 5 pounds of flake calcium chloride per test area. When the ice was decomposed, it was removed from the test area, the surface was flushed and the next cycle started. Test area "B", adjacent to test area "A", received a different type of treatment. Water was applied to the test area and allowed to freeze over night. The following morning the ice was melted by distributing calcium chloride over the area at the rate of 5 pounds per test area. When the ice was decomposed, it was removed from the test area and the surface was flushed. Fresh water was applied to the test area and the freezing and thawing cycle repeated. On the basis of the quantity of water resulting from the melted ice in each test area, it was calculated that 5 pounds of flake calcium chloride would be sufficient to produce a 10 percent solution.

It is proposed to carry on these tests for several years, on certain sections, to determine what effect age has on the ability of the various concretes to resist freezing, thawing and calcium chloride treatments. To this end, no calcium chloride has been applied to the durability project of the Test Road, except in the test areas. Each winter the test areas on certain sections will be established adjacent to the previous test areas.

It is hoped that the correlation of the observations made during construction and actual service together with the test information of the special scaling study should enable the Michigan State Highway Department to evaluate the many factors and determine their relative importance under the conditions imposed.

CONCLUSIONS

As soon as definite conclusions are obtained they will be transmitted to the various divisions of the Michigan State Highway Department who are concerned and, if feasible, will be incorporated in the specifications. In some cases, it will be necessary to construct only a few projects including these changes to obtain further substantiating data as to the effectiveness of the newer practice. It is hoped that the facts and relationships finally obtained from both the design and durability projects will assist in obtaining the whole answer to many controversial issues and will serve to aid the highway industry in the development and improvement of concrete pavements.

APPENDICES

- I Public Roads Administration Outline of Proposed Experimental Concrete Pavement Construction.
- II Characteristics of Materials Used in Michigan Test Road.
- III Miscellaneous Information.

IV Bibliography.

APPENDIX No. I

PUBLIC ROADS ADMINISTRATION OUTLINE OF PROPOSED EXPERIMENTAL CONCRETE PAVEMENT CONSTRUCTION

OBJECT

The purpose of this proposed experimental work is to study the desirable spacing of transverse expansion joints in concrete pavements and the amount of expansion space required per unit of pavement length, and to study the efficiency of dummy contraction joints with and without dowels or other devices for the transfer of load.

PROCEDURE

The investigation divides itself naturally into two parts as follows:

1. EFFICIENCY OF DUMMY CONTRACTION JOINTS

(A) It has been shown by previous investigations of the Public Roads Administration that the efficiency of tranverse joints, from the standpoint of stress reduction, cannot be determined by measurements of maximum deflections under load. For example, when a load is applied on one side of a joint the maximum deflections of the two joint edges may be identical but the maximum stress in the loaded edge may be more than twice as great as in the unoaded edge (see figure 32, PUBLIC ROADS, October 1936). The efficiency of joints in pavements can be determined only by accurate and time-consuming measurements of stress deformations in the concrete and it is not practicable to make such observations on pavements under traffic. Therefore, it is proposed to study the action of tranverse dummy joints in full-size pavement slabs that will not be subjected to traffic.

This study will be carried on at the laboratories of the Public Roads Administration. The test slabs will be constructed so that the width of joint opening can be controlled and so that the joints can be closed and the slabs subjected to direct compressive stress, thus simulating the condition of a pavement subjected to compressive stress due to expansion. Observations will be made of the efficiency of the joints as affected by the following variables:

- (a) Width of joint opening.
- (b) Restraint due to direct compressive. stress in the slab.
- (c) Type of aggregate.
- (d) Maximum size of aggregate.
- (e) Doweled vs. undoweled joints.

(B) In addition to this laboratory study, periodic condition surveys will be made of the actual performance of doweled and undoweled dummy joints in the experimental pavements that are hereinafter described.

2. SPACING OF EXPANSION JOINTS

A study of the required expansion space and the desirable spacing of expansion joints can be made only in relatively long sections of pavement and therefore it is proposed to enlist the cooperation of interested State Highway Departments in including the desired experimental sections in new projects that are to be built in the near future.

The details of the proposed experiment are as follows:

SELECTION OF PROJECT. The project selected should have no steep grades, a minimum of curvature, and the subgrade and drainage conditions should be as nearly uniform as possible throughout its length.

CROSS SECTION. With the exception of section 7, the pavement is to be of the thickened-edge type and the cross section is to be the standard of the State in which the project is built.

CONCRETE. The mix shall be the standard of the State in which the project is built and shall be made from coarse aggregate having a maximum size of not less than $1\frac{1}{2}$ inches.

EXPANSION JOINTS. All expansion joints are to be $\frac{3}{4}$ inch wide with a nonextruding filler and, except in section 7, are to be provided with approved load transfer devices.

CONTRACTION JOINTS. Contraction joints are to be of the grooved-dummy type and the spacing in the unreinforced sections is to be 15, 20 or 25 feet, depending on the type of aggregate and other local conditions.

REINFORCEMENT. With the exception of section 6, the pavement is not to be reinforced.

DESCRIPTION OF SECTIONS.

Section 1.

- (a) Length approximately 1 mile.
- (b) No expansion joints.
- (c) Contraction joints without dowels.

Section 2.

- (a) Length approximately $\frac{1}{2}$ mile.
- (b) Expansion joints at intervals of approximately 800 feet.
- (c) Contraction joints without dowels.

Section 3.

- (a) Length approximately $\frac{1}{2}$ mile.
- (b) Expansion joints at intervals of approximately 400 feet.
- (c) Contraction joints without dowels.

Section 4.

- (a) Length approximately $\frac{1}{4}$ mile.
- (b) Expansion joints at intervals of 120 or 125 feet, depending on spacing of contraction joints.
- (c) Contraction joints without dowels.

Section 5.

- (a) Length approximately 1/4 mile.
- (b) Expansion joints at intervals of 120 or 125 feet depending on the spacing of contraction joints.
- (c) Contraction joints with dowels.

Section 6.

- (a) Length approximately $\frac{1}{4}$ mile.
- (b) Expansion joints at intervals of 120 feet.
- (c) One contraction joint with dowels midway between each pair of expansion joints.
- (d) Reinforcement. The amount of reinforcement will depend on the thickness of the slab, but, if of wire fabric, it will weigh approximately 70 pounds per 100 square foot.

Section 7.

1.1

- (a) Length approximately $\frac{1}{4}$ mile.
- (b) Expansion joints without dowels at intervals of 120 or 125 feet, depending on the spacing of contraction joints.
- (c) Contraction joints without dowels.

(d) Cross-section — uniform thickness. The thickness is to be such that, with respect to maximum computed stresses, the slabs will be approximately comparable with the thickened-edge slabs used in the other sections.

NUMBER OF SECTIONS. Each experimental project will have only one section 1 but preferably there should be at least two each of the other sections, and two sections that are alike should be separated from each other by an appreciable distance. For example, the sections might be arranged in the order 7-6-5-4-3-2-1-2-3-4-5-6-7. This number of sections would occupy a total length of approximately 5 miles.

OBSERVATIONS. Careful observations will be made during construction so that a complete history of the project will be available. Periodic inspections will be made subsequently to determine behavior in service, particularly with respect to cracking that may develop.

Measurements of pavement temperature and the longitudinal movement at expansion and contraction joints will be made at a number of selected points on the project. These measurements will be sufficiently comprehensive to establish the range of the daily and annual cycle of temperature change and slab movement.

HISTORY

Since early in 1934 the Public Roads Administration has placed a limitation on the maximum spacing of expansion joints (originally 100 feet, now 120 feet) and has required the use of load transfer devices in both expansion and contraction joints in thickened-edge pavements. This limit on the spacing of expansion joints and the reguired use of dowels in transverse dummy contraction joints, irrespective of other design details, have been guestioned by a number of State Highway Departments and by the Portland Cement Association.

These criticisms are based on theoretical analysis and experience in certain localities, both of which indicate that

1. Little or no provision for expansion is required in concrete pavements that have normal expansion characteristics provided that contraction joints are so spaced as to control cracking and are so maintained as to prevent the infiltration of solid materials.

2. When expansion joints are used it is not necessary to provide enough expansion space to effect complete relief of restraint but, on the contrary, it is desirable from a structural standpoint to provide only enough space to keep compressive stresses within safe limits.

3. In dummy-groove contraction joints, so spaced as to control cracking, it is unnecessary to use dowels or other load transfer devices, particularly when expansion joints are omitted or used only at long spacings.

Recently the Portland Cement Association has presented a brief on the subject of jointing to the Public Roads Administration. As a result of study and discussion of this brief, the Public Roads Administration feels that further experimental work is needed to study some of the questions at issue.

The Public Roads Administration is of the opinion that its past experimental work has amply demonstrated the need for efficient load transfer devices in dummy contraction joints in thickened-edge slabs if these joints are not to be a source of potential weakness (see PUBLIC ROADS, October 1936). However, it is not averse to conducting a more comprehensive study of this subject than it has done previously.

It will be generally agreed by highway engineers that it would be advantageous to omit expansion joints entirely in concrete pavements if this could be done without detriment to the pavement. However, the desirability of this practice, or the proper spacing of joints if they are used, are still moot questions and further experimental work is required before they can be answered definitely. Additional information should be developed by the program of experimental construction that has been described.

APPENDIX No. II

CHARACTERISTICS OF MATERIALS USED IN MICHIGAN TEST ROAD

TABLE No. 3

Characteristics of Portland Cement Used on Design Project

ç.

24

100

Surface area, specific surface, square centimeters per	1000
gram	1800
Specific gravity	3.13
Normal consistency, percent	27.4
Initial setting time	4 hours
Final setting time	6 hours
Passing 100 mesh, percent	100
Passing 200 mesh, percent	98
Loss on ignition, percent	1.06
Insoluble matter, percent	0.20
Sulphuric anhydride (SO3), percent	1.65
Silica (SiO ₂), percent	22.67
Ferric oxide (Fe ₂ O ₃), percent	2.09
Aluminum oxide (Al ₂ O ₃), percent	4,68
Lime (CaO), percent	64.52
Magnesia (MgO), percent	3.16

Material	4 A	10A
Passing 2¼″ sievepercent		
Passing 2" sieve	100	
Passing 1½" sieve	74	
Passing 1'' sieve	20	100
Passing 1/2" sieve	• • • •	50
Passing 3/8" sieve percent	0.1	29
Passing No. 4 sievepercent		3.1
Loss by washing	0.1	0.1
1. Soft and non-durable particlespercent	0.7	1.1
2. Chert particlespercent	2.6	5.8
3. Hard absorbent sandstonepercent	0.0	1.1
Sum of 1, 2 and 3percent	3.3	8.0
Thin elongated particlespercent	3.4	0.8
Incrusted particles (greater than $1/3$ surface area)percent	1.7	0.7
Incrusted particles (1/3 surface area or less)percent	15.7	6.5
Crushed material in abrasionpercent	33.5	
Percent of wear modified "B" abrasion	3.5	
Specific gravity	2.65	2.59
Absorption percent	1.40	2.32

Characteristics of Coarse Aggregates Used on Design Project

Typical Grading of Fine Aggregate Used on Design Project

ST NO

Material	2 NS
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Passing ¾" sieve percent	100
Passing No. 4 sievepercent	99
Passing No. 8 sievepercent	66
Passing No. 16 sieve percent	37
Passing No. 30 sieve percent	22
Passing No. 50 sievepercent	7
Passing No. 100 sievepercent	1.6
Loss by washingpercent	0.7
Fineness modulus percent	3.67
Organic matter	Plate No. 2
Specific gravity	2.60
Absorptionpercent	1.78

Characteristics of Steel Reinforcing Bars Used on Design Project

	Tie Bars			Dowel Bars			
Laboratory No.	40A—1919 St.	40A-1920 St.	40A-1921 St.	40A-1922 St.	40 A -2170 St.	40A-2171 St.	
Size of specimen, inches	$\frac{1}{2}$ Rd. Def.	½ Rd. Def.	3⁄4 Rd. Def.	3⁄4 Rd. Pl.	l Rd. Plain	$1\frac{1}{4}$ Rd. Pl.	
Yield point, lbs. per sq. in	49,650	51,600	44,950	52,450	45,000	45,800	
Tensile strength, lbs. per sq. in.	75,650	77,950	76,300	89,200	72,250	80,400	
Elongation, percent	23.78	21.85	21.4	18.0	21.0	26.9	
Diameter of pin, inches	$1\frac{1}{2}$	11/2	21⁄4	21⁄4	2	21/2	
Ängle, degrees	180	180	90	90	90	90	
Quantity represented, lbs	40,474		131	5,633	4,926	510	
Grade of steel	Intermediate	Intermediate	Intermediate	Intermediate	Intermediate	Intermediate	
Cold bend test	OK	OK	OK	OK	ок	OK	

Second

Ren for a most

	Portland Cement						
Characteristics	Stan	dard	With Vin	sol Resin			
	Brand No. 1	Brand No. 2	Brand No. 1	Brand No. 2			
Surface area, specific surface square centi- meters, per gram	1,650	1,800	1,745	2,001			
Specific gravity	3.12	3.07	3.13	3.11			
Normal consistency	24.8	27.4	26.4	27.0			
Initial setting time	3–40	3–35	4–10	3–35			
Final setting time	5-40	5-20	6-40	5–35			
Passing No. 100 sieve, percent	100	100	100	100			
Passing No. 200 sieve, percent	95	98	96	98.5			
Vinsol Resin, percent			.050	.038			
Loss on ignition, percent	1.25	1.06	1.30	1.17			
Insoluble matter, percent	0.19	0.20	0.22	0.21			
Sulphuric anhydride (SO3), percent	1.74	1.65	1.80	1.58			
Silica (SiO2), percent	20.88	22.67	21.11	22.73			
Ferric oxide (Fe ₂ O ₃), percent	2.70	2.09	2.68	2.10			
Aluminum oxide (Al2O3), percent	6.62	4.68	6.71	4.59			
Lime (CaO), percent	62.83	64.52	63.01	64.12			
Magnesia (MgO), percent	3.17	3.16	3.00	2.98			

9 S.C

Characteristics of Portland Cement Used on Durability Project

Material	4A	10 A
Passing 2¼″ sievepercent		
Passing 2" sieve	100	
Passing $l\frac{1}{2}''$ sieve	84	
Passing 1'' sievepercent	23	100
Passing 1⁄2" sievepercent		55
Passing 3/8" sievepercent	1.7	25
Passing No. 4 sievepercent	• • • •	1.1
Loss by washing	0.2	0.1
l. Soft and non-durable particlespercent	1.2	0.6
2. Chert particles, percentpercent	0.7	9.0
3. Hard absorbent sandstonepercent	1.8	0.7
Sum of 1, 2 and 3percent	3.7	10.3
Thin elongated particlespercent	0.7	0.5
Incrusted particles (greater than $1/3$ surface area) percent	1.4	0.3
Incrusted particles (1/3 surface area or less)percent	1.7	1.8
Crushed material in abrasionpercent	29.1	
Percent of wear modified "A" abrasionpercent	3.7	••••
Specific gravity	2.65	2.62
Absorptionpercent	1.09	1.73

Characteristics of Coarse Aggregates Used on Durability Project

Typical Grading of Fine Aggregates Used on Durability Project

 $\sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1} \sum_{j=1}^{n-1}$

	Nat. Sand 2 NS	Blend Sand
Passing 3/8" sievepercent	100	• • • •
Passing No. 4 sievepercent	98	99
Passing No. 10 sieve	75	• • • •
Passing No. 20 sievepercent	45	
Passing No. 40 sieve percent		99
Passing No. 50 sievepercent	16	
Passing No. 100 sieve percent	3	69
Passing No. 200 sievepercent	• • • •	51
Silt and clay (0.005 mm.)percent	••••	· 40
Clay (0.001 mm.)percent	• • • •	5
Organic matter		Plate 2

	MSHD Spec.	Silica Dust	Limestone Dust
Passing No. 40 sieve, percent	100	100	100
Passing No. 80 sieve, percent		98.8	99.4
Passing No. 100 sieve, percent		98.4	99.2
Passing No. 200 sieve, percent	75+	78.4	89.8

Grading Characteristics of Mineral Fillers Used on Durability Project

TABLE No. 11

Specifications for Vinsol Resin Admixture

Maximum	Minimum
125°C	110°C
	85°C 85
30 2	15
0.3	 100
100 80	90 60
	Maximum 125°C 105°C 30 2 0.3 100 80

	Coarse A	Fine Aggregate	
	4 A	10A	2SS
Passing 2″ sievepercent	100		
Passing $1^{1\!\!\!/ 2^{\prime\prime}}$ sieve percent	67		
Passing 1" sievepercent	13	100	
Passing 1/2" sieve	•••••	53	
Passing ¾″ sieve percent	1.1	37	100
Passing No. 4 sievepercent	• • • •	7.3	99
Passing No. 8 sievepercent	• • • •		88
Passing No. 16 sieve percent	· • • • •		52
Passing No. 30 sieve percent	••••		28
Passing No. 50 sievepercent	••••		13
Passing No. 80 sievepercent	• • • •		
Passing No. 100 sievepercent	• • • •		4.3
Passing No. 200 sievepercent	••••		
Loss by washingpercent	0.3	0.7	2.0
Soft and non-durable particles percent	0.0	0.0	
Thin elongated particlespercent	••••	7.7	
Crushed materialpercent	100	<i>.</i>	
Percent of wear modified "A" abrasionpercent	11.9	· · · ·	
Absorptionpercent	0.58	0.66	1.47
Specific gravity	2.66	2.66	2.62

Characteristics of Limestone Materials Used on Durability Project

t

Asphalt Emulsion Characteristics Michigan State Highway Department Specification AE-1-A

Viscosity, Saybolt Furol at 25°C, sec.	20
*Test for break on fresh concrete	Passes
Distillation at 500°F. (250°C.)	
Total distillate, percent	46.0
Oil distillate, percent	Trace
Asphaltic residue from distillation	
Penetration at 25°C., 100 g., 5 sec.	161
Ductility at 25°C., cm.	110+
Solubility in CS ₂ , percent	99.43
Specific gravity, 25°/25°C	1.008
Ash content, percent	0.55

*The asphalt emulsion shall commence to break in not less than 15 seconds and not more than 5 minutes after applied to fresh concrete.

Cut-Back Asphalt Characteristics

Specific Gravity, 15.5°C./15.5°C	0.901
Water, percent volume	Trace
Flash point, Tagliabue, open cup	34.4°C
Viscosity, Saybolt Furol, sec. 38°C	59
Viscosity, Saybolt Furol, sec. 25°C	97
Distillation Test, percent by volume	
То 190°С	39.0
То 225°С	47.5
То 315.5°С	52.5
То 360°С	54.5
Tests on distillation residue	
Specific gravity 25°/25°C	1.043
Penetration at 25°C./100 g., 5 sec	5
Ductility at 25°C., cm	1
Solubility in CCl4, percent	99.83
Oliensis spot test	Negative
Fixed carbon, percent	20.7

- Children

l

i.

APPENDIX No. III MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION

TABLE No. 15

Average Traffic Record of Michigan Test Road 1941

1	Period					
Month	Week Day Sunday					
	Low	High	Aver.	Low	High	Aver.
March	262	876	584	702	1062	925
April	539	1367	789	1064	1637	1292
May	565	1286	839	1412	1907	1698
June	642	1610	980	1389	1885	1705
July	918	2514	1398	1885	2526	2205
August	1088	2544	1811	2607	3347	2977
September	698	1481	1089	1641	2456	2048
October	645	1225	935	1626	1772	1699

TABLE No. 16

Classification of Traffic on Michigan Test Road Average Summer Daily Traffic

	Amount	Percent
Total traffic	1590	100
Passenger cars	1361	85.6
Passenger cars with trailers	76	4.8
Total passenger cars	1437	90.4
Light trucks, (¾ ton and under)	43	2.7
Medium trucks, (1 to $2\frac{1}{2}$ tons)	26	1.6
Heavy trucks, (3 tons and over)	43	2.7
Trailer combinations	41	2.6
Busses	0	0.0
Total commercial	153	9.6

Ē.

APPENDIX IV

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- Highway Research at Pittsburg, California, 1921-1922. A Report by the Department of Public Works, 1923.
- Bates Experimental Road. State of Illinois Department of Public Works and Buildings, Division of Highways, Bulletin No. 18, by Clifford Older, January, 1922.
- Structural Design of Concrete Pavements, by L. W. Teller and E. C. Sutherland, Public Roads, Vol. 16, No. 8, October, 1935.
- 4. Stresses in Concrete Pavements Computed by Theoretical Analysis, by H. M. Westergaard, Public Roads, Vol. 7, No. 2, April 1926 and Analytical Tools for Judg-ing Results of Structural Tests of Concrete Pavements, by H. M. Westergaard, Public Roads, Vol. 14, No. 10, December, 1933.
- 5. Application of Research to the Structural Design of Concrete Pavements, by E. F. Kelley, Public Roads, Vol. 20, No. 5, July, 1939.
- The Electric Strain Meter and Its Use in Measuring Internal Strains, by R. E. Davis and R. W. Carlson, Proceedings of the American Society of Testing Materials, Vol. 32, 1932, Part II, Technical Papers, pp. 793-801 and Five Years Improvements of the Elastic Wire Strain Meter, by R. W. Carlson, Engineering News Record, May 9, 1935, pp. 696-697.
- Field Experiments in the Curing of Concrete Pavements, by F. H. Jackson and G. Werner, Public Roads, Vol. 9, No. 7, September 1928; The Arlington Curing Experiments, by L. W. Teller and H. L. Bosley, Public Roads, Vol. 10, No. 12, February 1930, and A Study of Methods of Curing Concrete Pavements, by F. H. Jackson and E. W. Bauman, Public Roads, Vol. 11, No. 11, January, 1931.
- 8. Study of Methods of Curing Concrete, by H. F. Gonnerman, Journal of American Concrete Institute, Vol. 1, No. 4, February, 1930.
- An Investigation of Methods of Curing of Concrete Pavements, by F. V. Reagel, T. F. Willis and F. N. Wray, Missouri State Highway Department, June, 1932, and Report of Project Committee on Curing of Concrete Pavement Slabs, by F. C. Lang and Mark Morris, Proceedings of Highway Research Board, Vol. 12, Part I, December, 1932.
- A Proposed System for the Analysis and Field Control of Fresh Concrete, by W. M. Dunagan, Iowa State College Bulletin 113, Vol. 31, No. 49, May, 1933.
- Application of Sonic Methods to Freezing and Thawing Studies of Concrete, by F. P. Hornibrook, American Society for Testing Materials, Bulletin No. 101, December, 1939, p. 5.